Public Document Pack

Agenda Reports & Other Papers
Presented to the
Meeting of the
Public Health and Prevention Cabinet Panel
on
Wednesday, 18 September 2019

1.

AGENDA

1 - 148

Agenda

AGENDA for a meeting of the PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION CABINET
PANEL in COMMITTEE ROOM B at County Hall, Hertford on WEDNESDAY, 18
SEPTEMBER 2019 at 10:00AM
___________________________________________________________________
MEMBERS OF THE PANEL (13) (Quorum 3)
A P Brewster (Vice Chairman), L A Chesterman, C Clapper, M A Eames-Petersen, S
Gordon, F Guest, T Howard, T R Hutchings (Chairman), M B J Mills-Bishop, N A Quinton, A
F Rowlands, R G Tindall, W J Wyatt-Lowe
AGENDA
Meetings of the Cabinet Panel are open to the public (this includes the press) and
attendance is welcomed. However, there may be occasions when the public are excluded
from the meeting for particular items of business. Any such items are taken at the end of
the public part of the meeting and are listed under “Part II (‘closed’) agenda”.
Committee Room B is fitted with an audio system to assist those with hearing
impairment. Anyone who wishes to use this should contact main (front) reception.
Members are reminded that all equalities implications and equalities
impact assessments undertaken in relation to any matter on this agenda must be
rigorously considered prior to any decision being reached on that matter.
Members are reminded that:
(1)

if they consider that they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter
to be considered at the meeting they must declare that interest and must not
participate in or vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been granted
by the Standards Committee;

(2)

if they consider that they have a Declarable Interest (as defined in paragraph
5.3 of the Code of Conduct for Members) in any matter to be considered at
the meeting they must declare the existence and nature of that interest. If a
member has a Declarable Interest they should consider whether they should
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it.

Agenda Pack Page 1
1

PART I (PUBLIC) AGENDA
1.

MINUTES
To note the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2019.

2.

PUBLIC PETITIONS
The opportunity for any member of the public, being resident in Hertfordshire,
to present a petition relating to a matter with which the Council is concerned,
which is relevant to the remit of this Cabinet Panel and which contains
signatories who are either resident in or who work in Hertfordshire.
Members of the public who are considering raising an issue of concern via a
petition are advised to contact their local member of the Council. The
Council's arrangements for the receipt of petitions are set out in Annex 24 Petitions Scheme of the Constitution.
If you have any queries about the procedure please contact Stephanie
Tarrant, by telephone on 01992 555481 or by e-mail to
Stephanie.Tarrant@hertfordshire.gov.uk
At the time of the publication of this agenda no notices of petitions have been
received.

3.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S HEALTH IMPACT ASSESSMENT
POSITION STATEMENT
Report of the Director of Public Health

4.

HEALTHY PLACES UPDATE
Report of the Director of Public Health

5.

HERTFORDSHIRE’S HEALTHY WORKPLACE PROGRAMME
Report of the Director of Public Health

6.

PREVENTION GREEN PAPER
Report of the Director of Public Health

7.

PUBLIC HEALTH QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT – Q1 2019/20
Report of the Director of Public Health

8.

BROXBOURNE AIR QUALITY PROJECT UPDATE REPORT
Report of the Director of Environment and Infrastructure

Agenda Pack Page 2
2

9.

FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME
The Panel is invited to note the provisional agenda for 14 November 2019:
 Update on 0-19 Family Service
 Stop Smoking Service Annual Report 2018-19
 Q2 Performance Report
 Public Health Strategy Update

10.

OTHER PART I BUSINESS
Such Part I (public) business which, if the Chairman agrees, is of sufficient
urgency to warrant consideration.

PART II (‘CLOSED’) AGENDA
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There are no items of Part II business on this agenda. If Part II business is notified the
Chairman will move:“That under Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item/s of business on the grounds that
it/they involve/s the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph/s
……. of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the said Act and the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.”
If you require further information about this agenda please contact
Stephanie Tarrant, Democratic Services, on telephone no 01992 555481 or email
Stephanie.Tarrant@hertfordshire.gov.uk.
Agenda documents are also available on the internet at:
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
QUENTIN BAKER
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

Agenda Pack Page 3
3

This page is intentionally left blank

MINUTES

To: All Members of the Public
Health and Prevention Cabinet
Panel, Chief Executive, Chief
Officers, All officers named for
‘actions’

From:
Legal, Democratic & Statutory Services
Ask for: Stephanie Tarrant
Ext:
25481

PUBLIC HEALTH AND PERFORMANCE CABINET PANEL
21 JUNE 2019
ATTENDANCE
MEMBERS OF THE PANEL
A P Brewster (Vice Chairman), L A Chesterman, M A Eames-Petersen, T Howard (substituting
for C Clapper),T R Hutchings (Chairman), M B J Mills-Bishop, N A Quinton, S Quilty
(substituting for S Gordon); R G Tindall, W J Wyatt-Lowe
OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE:
A F Rowlands*
*Although Cllr Rowlands sat on the Panel it was subsequently confirmed that he had not been
formally appointed to the Panel by the Chief Legal Officer. Cllr Rowlands comments are
reflected in these minutes, but where Members were requested to vote on an issue, his vote
has been discounted.
Upon consideration of the agenda for the Public Health and Prevention Cabinet Panel
meeting 21 June 2019 as circulated, copy annexed, conclusions were reached and are
recorded below:
Note: No conflicts of interest were declared by any member of the Cabinet Panel
in relation to the matters on which conclusions were reached at this meeting.
PART I (‘OPEN’) BUSINESS
1.

MINUTES

ACTION

1.1

The Minutes of the Cabinet Panel meeting held on 9 May 2019
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

2.

PUBLIC PETITIONS

2.1

There were no public petitions.

3.

TOBACCO CONTROL POLICY
[Officer Contact: Jim McManus, Director of Public Health,

Agenda Pack Page 5

1

Tel: 01438 845389 / Liz Fisher, Head of Provider Services,
Tel: 01442 453633]
3.1

The Panel received a report which enabled Members to consider a
revised and updated policy statement on tobacco control in light of
the County Council’s statutory responsibilities for Public Health and
the changes in tobacco legislation and tobacco trends since the last
policy was adopted in 2013.

3.2

During discussion it was noted that since the policy was adopted
there had been a declining trend in children and young people
taking up smoking, and there was an increasing trend in the public
looking to reduce or quit smoking through using alternative
methods such as vaping.

3.3

In response to a Member challenge regarding the potential health
risks associated with vaping, Members were assured that ecigarettes were regarded as being much safer than smoking by
current expert advice including official advice from Public Health
England, and Vaping Shops were regulated under consumer
protection laws. It was noted that any e-cigarette with a 20mg or
higher level of nicotine was classified as a medicinal product,
although it was clarified that e-cigarettes are not currently available
on prescription. Members were reminded that this issue had been
discussed in greater detail at the Public Health & Prevention
Panel’s discussion on the Tobacco Control Strategic Plan on 9 May
2019.

3.4

A Member comment regarding the high health risk from tobacco
associated with smoking shisha pipes was noted.

3.5

The Panel were interested to learn that tobacco and not nicotine
was the most harmful element within cigarettes, and that tobacco
contained over 400 harmful chemicals.

3.6

In response to robust Member challenge regarding
recommendation iii and the choice of tobacco industry related
investments for the Council’s Pension’s Scheme, Members were
advised that the choice of investments was not something that was
decided by the Council, but by its Pensions Investors, with whom
the Council were legally bound to comply. Assurance was received
that the current Investment Strategy was due to be imminently
reviewed by the Pensions Committee.

3.7

The Lead Liberal Democrat Group Opposition spokesman strongly
disputed that the Council could have no influence in the decision
making regarding investments and reiterated the need to challenge
the Council’s pension’s investors to find alternative industries to
those associated with tobacco, whose investments would provide
equal return for its customers.

Pensions
Committee

2
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 6

3.8

Members discussed the identified connection between smoking
and mental health, and further to concerns raised, assurance was
received that this was being addressed through the Hertfordshire
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, the local mental health trust,
and it was highlighted that this had been considered throughout the
report.

3.9

In response to a Member concern, the Panel agreed to amend
recommendation iv in the report as follows:
recommended to Cabinet that it agrees that the County Council’s
policy on allowing smoking by employees, visitors and contractors
within its grounds be reviewed and further agrees that the Council
works towards adopting a ‘Smoke free’ policy which prohibits
smoking on any employment premises owned or leased by the
County Council.
The word employment was added to ensure avoidance of doubt for
residential council owned property where this would be
unenforceable.

3.10

Members were pleased to learn that the Council were Members of
Smoke free Hertfordshire, Hertfordshire’s Tobacco Control Alliance,
and it was agreed that further information on this and the work
undertaken by District Councils, such as smoke free parks to
promote smoke free initiatives would be circulated to Members.

3.11

Further to discussion, it was confirmed that the County Council
could encourage district councils to promote smoke free initiatives
such as playgrounds, but could not enforce any policies.

Jim
McManus/Li
z Fisher

Recommendations:
3.13

The Public Health and Prevention Cabinet Panel:i.

considered the revised policy on tobacco control in light of the
County Council’s statutory responsibilities for Public Health
and the changes since the last policy statement on tobacco
control1 was approved by Cabinet on 25 November 2013;

ii.

recommended to Cabinet that it adopts the revised ‘Reducing
the harm from Tobacco in Hertfordshire’ policy statement
attached as Appendix A to the report;

1

https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=146&MeetingId=372&DF=25%
2f11%2f2013&Ver=2

3
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 7

iii.

recommended that Cabinet asks the Pensions’ Committee to
review its portfolio of investment with the principles and
intentions in the ‘Reducing the harm from Tobacco in
Hertfordshire’ policy statement if legally and financially
appropriate; and

iv.

recommended to Cabinet that it agrees that the County
Council’s policy on allowing smoking by employees, visitors
and contractors within its grounds be reviewed and further
agrees that the Council works towards adopting a ‘Smoke free’
policy which prohibits smoking on any employment* premises
owned or leased by the County Council.


The word employment was added to ensure avoidance of
doubt for residential council owned property where this
would be unenforceable

4.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL SEXUAL HEALTH
STRATEGY: 2019-2024
[Officer Contact: Rob Bacon, Sexual Health Lead, Tel: 01438
844135; Zac Mather, Project Manager]

4.1

The Panel received a report which detailed the proposed
Hertfordshire County Council Sexual Health Strategy: 2019-2024.

4.3

Explanation was received that the strategy promoted the
development on three centres of excellence for sexual health to
reflect the changing landscape for sexual health service
requirement across the county. Members were assured that the
strategy would ensure clear signposting to the nearest clinic, and
opening times would be staggered to ensure as much opportunity
to access service as possible. Members were advised that sexual
health treatment and advice was rarely an emergency, and a
number of sexual health needs were now able to be met online, or
through a pharmacy or GP.

4.4

In response to a query from the Chairman, officers advised that
they were unclear as to why East & North Hertfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group had indicated to the Chairman that they had
not been consulted on this proposal, as it had been discussed with
all health partners within Hertfordshire, but agreed that this would
be followed up to reinforce the certainty that all relevant health
partners were aware of the proposals.

Jim
McManus

4.5

Further to Member discussion, it was agreed that the broader issue
of sexual health provision should be discussed in more detail at a
future meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee to ensure that
needs were being met across the county.

Seamus
Quilty

4
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 8

4.6

In response to a Member question it was clarified that due to
patient confidentiality, it was not possible to establish whether the
patients accessing sexual health advice or treatment in the AL10
area were primarily from the University of Hertfordshire. It was
noted that there was currently a clinic at the University site, with a
future site being in the library located in Hatfield Town Centre.

4.7

A Member challenge that young people may not necessarily like to
seek sexual health advice and treatment online due to the
traceability of which websites they had been accessing by their
peers or parents was noted.

4.8

A further Member challenge disputing the indication that the
planned clinics had good transport links was noted. It was broadly
acknowledged that although the clinics may be located in areas
with good transport links, the service users may not have good
transport links in the areas they lived and therefore may not be able
to access to the clinics easily.

4.9

Members expressed further concern regarding the lack of
transparency within the report on the full detail of the planned
closure of current clinics, and whether the strategy would be
successful in saving the Council money, especially given the
uncertainty surrounding future grant funding.
Recommendations:

4.5

Further to a vote by a show of hands, Members voted in favour by
a majority of six votes to four* that the Cabinet Panel recommend
to Cabinet that it approve the draft Hertfordshire County Council
Sexual Health Strategy 2019 -2024 attached as Appendix 1 to the
report.
*Although Cllr Rowlands sat on the Panel it was subsequently
confirmed that he had not been formally appointed to the Panel by
the Chief Legal Officer. Cllr Rowlands comments are reflected in
these minutes, but where Members were requested to vote on an
issue, his vote has been discounted.

5.

HEALTHY WEIGHT IN HERTFORDSHIRE
[Officer Contact: Sue Matthews, Consultant in Public Health –
Children & Young People, Tel: 01992 556 125; Piers Simey,
Consultant in Public Health – Adults health improvement, Tel:
01438 844175; Jen Beer, Health Improvement Lead – Children &
Young People, Tel: 01438 843309; Maneka Kandola, Health
Improvement Lead – Lifestyle, Tel: 01438 844662]

5.1

The Panel received a report which provided an update since June
5

CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 9

2018 and set out a proposed approach to supporting and promoting
healthy weight in Hertfordshire.
5.2

Members were advised that the initiative had been developed
based on a strategy that had worked successfully in Amsterdam.

5.3

During discussion, a Member comment that consideration should
be made to future residential building planning, as flats did not
provide adequate provision for children or adults to play or exercise
was noted.

5.4

Caution was also expressed about the language used within the
report to describe people for whom there were weight concerns. It
was acknowledged that terms such as ‘overweight’ and ‘obese’
while clinically accurate could be very demoralising and often
compound the issue of low self-esteem for those trying to achieve
or maintain a healthy weight. It was agreed that this would be taken
into consideration for any future reports, developments or
communication on the strategy.

5.5

It was also noted that not everyone enjoys or participates in sport,
so therefore it would be preferable to use the term physical activity.

5.6

A Member challenge that 60.4% of adults in Hertfordshire being
classified as not having a healthy weight was not significantly lower
than the average of 62% of adults in England as detailed at 2.3 of
the report was noted.

5.7

In considering the report, Members noted the importance of early
intervention to help achieve a healthy weight and suggested the
need for schools to increase the level of opportunity for their pupils
to undertake physical activity. Members learnt that the ViceChairman of the Panel was leading on promoting healthy eating
and physical activity in schools and Members were encouraged to
advise of her of any schools within their areas which would benefit
from advice or help to promote this. Members acknowledged that
the ‘Daily Mile’ initiative had been a success in a number of schools
across the county.

5.8

A Member suggestion to increase investment in youth services to
provide opportunities for young people to undertake activity was
noted. It was broadly acknowledged that teenagers can often be
the most vulnerable in terms of self-image.

5.9

The Panel also acknowledged a Member comment that the money
saved by the NHS in treating weight related health conditions
should be reinvested into the promotion of healthy weight
initiatives.

5.10

The Panel considered and broadly supported the ten Pillars of
Action outlined at Table One within the report. Further to a Member
comment, assurance was received that consideration had been
given to supporting those with mental health issues and physical or

Sue
Matthews/
Piers
Simey/Jen
Beer/
Maneka
Kandola

6
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 10

learning disabilities achieve a healthy weight.

Recommendations:
5.11

Panel considered and commented on the report and the themes it
addressed, as detailed above.
Panel noted and endorsed the Director of Public Health’s view that
support provided to residents to maintain a healthy weight should
remain a key priority for the County Council and requires
maintained/increased commitment across the system.
Panel noted and endorsed the Director of Public Health’s intention
to take forward the proposed ‘10 Pillars of Action’ for healthy weight
in Hertfordshire, to support broader engagement leading to an
action plan across the county.

6.

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK
[Officer Contact: Steven Pilsworth, Assistant Director of Finance
Joanne Doggett, Head of Programme Delivery & Resources]

6.1

Members received a report which provided an update on the overall
financial outlook for the County Council.

6.2

The Panel were reminded that the Public Health department were
funded through a ring fenced grant from central government, which
had been reduced annually by government, by between £1 and
£2m a year since 2016, with the funding grant for 2019/20 being
£46m. It was noted that the department had not been included in
internal pressure bid funding to mitigate the financial challenges
associated with issues such as demographic increases.

6.3

It was acknowledged that given current national political
uncertainty, it was difficult to predict what the exact funding
settlement would be for 2021, although it was belived that the
mechanisms for providing the funding would remain the same.

6.4

Members expressed concern that the outcomes of the green paper
on the future of social care, and the NHS 10 year plan, could also
have an impact on the expectations of future Public Health
workstreams.

6.5

In considering the report, Members noted that considerations were
being made to efficiencies in the vacancy rate. In response to
7

CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 11

Member challenge, assurance was received that the risk that this
may pose to service delivery had been acknowledged and initial
discussions had been held with the clinical commissioning groups
(CCG’s) to explore opportunities in combining resources to ensure
that service delivery was not affected.

6.6

During discussion, Members stated that the success of key
services such as drug and alcohol services, smoking cessation
service, sexual health services and healthy weight services were
providing efficiencies in the NHS budget, through reduction in
GP/hospital attendance and officers were asked to consider
discussing the possibility of co commissioning between NHS and
council to support shared objectives in national health policy

Jim
McManus

6.7

A request to consider the possibility of receiving funding from the
Better Care Fund was also noted.

Jo Doggett

6.8

In response to a Member request it was agreed that officers would
circulate a briefing note explaining the plans for the individual
district public health hubs.

Jo Doggett

6.9

It was agreed that closer working with district councils would also
contribute to the success of achieving public health strategies and it
was confirmed that there was district council representation on the
professional development meetings.
Recommendations:

6.10

Members noted and commented upon the financial position and
options outlined within the report, as detailed above.

7.

FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME

7.1

The Panel noted the provisional agenda for 18 September 2019:
 Workplace Health
 Healthy Places Update
 Public Health Strategy Update

8.

OTHER PART I BUSINESS

8.1

There was no other Part I business.

QUENTIN BAKER
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

CHAIRMAN
8

CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 12

Agenda Item
No:
HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2019 AT 10:00AM

3

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S HEALTH IMPACT ASSESSMENT
POSITION STATEMENT
Report of the Director of Public Health
Authors:-

Bethan Clemence, Strategic Lead Healthy Places
(Tel: 01992 555863)
Fiona Deans, Healthy Places Officer
(Tel: 01992 588804)

Executive Member:-

Tim Hutchings, Public Health and Prevention

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to: Inform Panel of the Director of Public Health’s view that the
County Council should make clear its position on planningrelated Health Impact Assessment (HIA), given the level of
growth and development anticipated within Hertfordshire over
the next 10 years;
 Inform Panel on the discussions across the Environment and
Public Health Directorates, in consultation with the Executive
Member for Public Health and the Executive Member for
Growth, Infrastructure and Planning regarding the use of HIA’s;
 Present a draft HIA Position Statement and supporting
guidance, developed in collaboration between officers within
Public Health and Environment.

2.

Summary

2.1

A HIA differs from an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA). The
former is an assessment of the possible impact of a programme or
project on the natural environment. EIA, which is the subject of
European Union legislation, ensures that decision makers consider any
possible environmental impacts prior to deciding whether to proceed
with a project.

Agenda Pack Page 13

1

2.2

A HIA is a means of evidence-based policy making for improvement in
health. It is a combination of methods whose aim is to assess the
health consequences to a population of a policy, project or programme
that does not necessarily have health as its primary objective, and
assesses how developments, policies and projects could affect health.

2.3

HIA’s seek to produce a set of evidence-based practical
recommendations that will inform decision-makers on how best they
can promote and protect the health and wellbeing of local communities.

2.4

There is no legal or statutory framework in England specifically for
standalone HIA, however under the Town and Country planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 there is a
requirement to consider the health impacts which may arise from a
development. Undertaking a Health Impact Assessment is the
appropriate mechanism for assessing these health impacts.

2.5

Working with Spatial Planning colleagues within the Environment
Directorate, and in consultation with Public Health England and
neighbouring local authorities, Public Health has developed a
Hertfordshire County Council HIA Position Statement. This forms part
of a wider resource under development to include HIA guidance and
training for countywide planning colleagues and developers.

3.

Recommendation/s

3.1

Panel is asked to:


Note and comment upon the content of this Report
Note the Director of Public Health’s view that the County Council
should make clear its position on planning-related HIA’s, given the
level of growth and development anticipated within Hertfordshire
over the next 10 years.

4.

Background

4.1

It is widely accepted that the health of a population is determined by a
range of factors and that the greatest scope for improving the public’s
health lies outside the control of the NHS. Health Impact Assessments
are a method to identify those activities and policies likely to have
major impacts on the health of a population.

4.2

The undertaking of a HIA is a multidisciplinary process within which a
range of evidence about health effects of a proposal is considered in a

Agenda Pack Page 14

2

structured framework. It seeks to identify the positive opportunities for
health from a proposal as well as highlighting potential negative
impacts that need mitigation; overall its purpose is to avoid any
unintended consequences of a proposal for the health of a given
population.
4.3

The County Council, in its role as the Public Health Authority, now
seeks HIA’s for major housing developments (determined by the district
and borough councils), minerals and waste proposals (determined by
the County Council) and National Strategic Infrastructure Projects
(NSIPs) (e.g. High Speed 2, airport expansion proposals).

4.4

One of the key challenges officers face in seeking HIA’s – apart from
the absence of a legislative framework – is the lack of a nationally
adopted, consistent approach to these assessments. Over the last 12
months the Public Health Directorate has been concerned to ensure it
can establish consistency and quality on HIA’s within Hertfordshire.

4.5

Whilst HIA’s cannot be required, by formally adopting a position
statement on HIA’s, the County Council can encourage the submission
of HIA’s for relevant planning applications (as per guidance set out in
Appendix 1) and make the content of a HIA something that should be
taken into account in deciding a planning application.

4.6

The longer-term aim is to ensure HIA’s become part of our adopted
Planning Policy. For a planning ‘Policy’ to be established and adopted
by the County Council it must follow a prescribed process of drafting,
appraisal, public consultation and independent scrutiny.

4.7

This process is being followed by the County Council with its emerging
Minerals and Waste Local Plans and wording is being developed to
incorporate HIA’s.

4.8

In due course the Director of Public Health also aims to work with
Hertfordshire’s Local Planning Authorities (i.e. the district and borough
councils) to incorporate HIA’s within local plan policy.

4.9

Working with Spatial Planning colleagues, and in consultation with
Public Health England and neighbouring local authorities, Public Health
has developed a Hertfordshire County Council Health Impact
Assessment Position Statement. This forms part of a wider resource
under development to include HIA guidance and training for
countywide planning colleagues and developers.

Agenda Pack Page 15

3

4.10

In addition officers are seeking further comment through a number of
internal groups, including the Plans Management Group and Corporate
Growth Group and Transport Planning Board.

4.11

The draft HIA Position Statement is included as Annex 1. If approved,
the intention is for these to be made available on the County Council’s
Healthy Places webpage1, and the position statement to be
implemented.

5.

Outcome(s) to be achieved

5.1

The benefits to be derived from this work are:


Clear direction to Members, Local Planning Authorities, developers
and the wider public on the County Council’s position on HIA’s;
their content and when they are required.



Supporting emerging HIA policy development through local plan
processes.



Improved, consistent assessment of health and wellbeing in growth
and development, contributing to healthy place-shaping across the
county.

6.

Equalities implications

6.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important
that they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered
the Equality implications of the decision that they are making.

6.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the county council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

6.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the county council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited
under the Act; (b) advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it and (c) foster good relations between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The
protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age;
disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;

1

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents/made

Agenda Pack Page 16

4

pregnancy and maternity; race; religion and belief, sex and sexual
orientation
6.4

A fundamental of HIA is its focus on health inequalities. This is where it
most starkly differs from Environmental Impact Assessment. A good
HIA should identify negative impacts from development and make
proposals to mitigate against them; it should also highlight the positives
and opportunities that a development can bring for the local population.
As such, this work should lead to a positive impact on Hertfordshire’s
population including (but not limited to) those with Protected
Characteristics under the Equality Act 2010.

7.

Financial Context

7.1

The financial cost to undertake any Health Impact Assessments will be
expected to be met by the developer / planning applicant. Where
Hertfordshire County Council is the developer / planning applicant, the
relevant Department should meet the cost of undertaking the HIA.
Costs are anticipated to be similar to other externally commissioned
consultancy services for work of this nature

7.2

In line with current practice, it is not expected that the Public Health
Department will directly conduct HIAs. The costs should be borne by
the Developer or Applicant.

7.3

Officer time will be required to quality assess the HIAs submitted with
planning applications. This will be absorbed within existing officer
resource and capacity. Whether or not the County Council can recoup
the cost for officer time in doing this will need to be explored by the
Public Health department.
Background Information
As per hyperlinks in Appendix 1.

Agenda Pack Page 17

5

Agenda Pack Page 18

6

Appendix 1:

Hertfordshire County Council Health Impact Assessment Position
Statement

Agenda Pack Page 19

7

Hertfordshire County Council
Position Statement:

Health Impact Assessments (HIA’s)

This position statement outlines Hertfordshire County Council’s stance on
Health Impact Assessments (HIA’s) in relation to planning. It has been
produced by Hertfordshire Public Health and the Spatial Planning Unit.
Table of Contents
1 Background .......................................................................................................... 9
1.1

Definitions: HIA, health and health impact..................................................... 9

1.2

What does a HIA consider? ........................................................................... 9

1.3

What HIAs can and can’t do. ....................................................................... 11

1.4 What’s the difference between a HIA and an Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA)?................................................................................................ 11
2

Policy context ..................................................................................................... 12

3

Hertfordshire County Council Position on HIAs .................................................. 13
3.1

Thresholds for undertaking HIAs ................................................................. 13

3.1.1

Housing................................................................................................ 13

3.1.2

Waste ................................................................................................... 13

3.1.3

Minerals ............................................................................................... 13

3.1.4

Non-residential space ......................................................................... 13

3.1.5

National Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIP)..........................14

3.2

Methodology for undertaking HIAs .............................................................. 14

3.3

Quality assurance framework to assess HIAs ............................................. 15

4

Further information ............................................................................................. 15

5

References ......................................................................................................... 15

6

Date of publication and document review .......................................................... 16

Agenda Pack Page 20

8

1.
1.1

Background
Definitions: HIA, health and health impact

A health impact assessment is defined as:
“A combination of procedures, methods and tools by which a policy,
programme or project may be judged as to its potential effects on the health
of a population, and the distribution of those effects within the population”
(World Health Organization, 2018a).
The World Health Organization (WHO) defines health as:
“A state of complete physical, mental, and social wellbeing and not merely the
absence of disease or infirmity”
(World Health Organization, 2018b).
Health impact is defined as:
“A health impact can be positive or negative. A positive health impact is an
effect which contributes to good health or to improving health. For example,
having a sense of control over one’s life and having choices is known to have
a beneficial effect on mental health and wellbeing, making people feel
“healthier”. A negative health impact has the opposite effect, causing or
contributing to ill health. For example, working in unhygienic or unsafe
conditions or spending a lot of time in an area with poor air quality is likely to
have an adverse effect on physical health status”
(World Health Organization, 2018c).

1.2

What does a HIA consider?

HIAs consider how the population will be affected assessing both positive and
negative health impacts. Health inequalities should be a key consideration to
ensure they are not increased further by proposed developments (U.K.
Department of Health, 2010).
Health inequalities are defined as:
“… the unjust and avoidable differences in people’s health across the
population and between specific population groups… Health inequalities go
against the principles of social justice because they are avoidable. They do
not occur randomly or by chance. They are socially determined by
circumstances largely beyond an individual’s control. These circumstances
disadvantage people and limit their chance to live longer, healthier lives”
(NHS Health Scotland, 2018).

Agenda Pack Page 21

9

Population groups who are particularly vulnerable to health inequalities
include: children and young people, older adults, people with disabilities,
people from lower socio-economic groups and people with long term illnesses
(NHS Health Scotland, 2018). See Appendix A for a detailed list of vulnerable
population groups.
The health inequalities should be assessed using the social determinants of
health (Department of Health, 2010). The adapted version of Whitehead and
Dahlgren’s Social determinants of health model, called the “health map” (fig
1) published by Barton and Grant (2006) is recommended for HIAs.
Figure 1. The Health Map – the determinants of health and wellbeing in our
neighbourhoods (Source: Barton & Grant, 2006).

Collaboration across multiple sectors is required to optimise health using the
health map such as public health, urban designers, planning departments,
ecologists, community development organisations and environmental health
departments (Barton & Grant, 2006). This was the intention of Barton and

Agenda Pack Page 22

10

Grant (2006) when it was developed. A good health and wellbeing
determinants checklist to use in conjunction with Figure 1 is available online2 .

1.3

What HIAs can and can’t do.

A HIA will follow a staged process (see section 3.2) to identify the potential
positive and negative health impacts of developments. They don’t only
focus on negative impacts. By following each stage of the methodology, a
clear brief will be produced from the screening and scoping stages to
determine the type of HIA that will be undertaken, i.e. rapid or in-depth. They
assess the health impacts at different stages of the proposed developments
(i.e. construction phase, operational phase / occupation, and
decommissioning – where applicable).
The size of the HIA should be proportionate to the scale, type and location of
the proposed development.
HIAs do not undertake clinical trials. They use primary research (e.g.
surveys, focus groups and interviews) and secondary research (e.g. desk
research using existing data). The extent of primary research will be
determined as part of the scoping stage.
The HIA written report presents the potential positive and negative health
impacts with suggested mitigation measures. They identify population groups
that may be more vulnerable to negative health impacts created by certain
aspects of the development. The findings from the HIA should be used to
inform planning decisions and to make amendments to proposed
developments (where reasonable and appropriate).
HIA does not provide a definitive answer on whether planning
permission should be granted or an objection made. The findings of the
HIA should be used as one component of the decision-making process.
It is essential to use a Quality Assurance framework to assess the validity of
the report.
1.4
What’s the difference between a HIA and an Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA)?
An Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is a process by which information
about the environmental effects of a project is collected, both by the
developer and from other sources, and taken into account by the planning
authority in determining planning applications. The types of project that
require EIA are contained in the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 (“the EIA Regulations”).
2

https://whiasu.publichealthnetwork.cymru/files/1415/0710/5107/HIA_Tool_Kit_V2_WEB.pdf

Agenda Pack Page 23

11

The EIA considers the effects of “… biophysical issues related to
environmental hazards, for example, water and air quality” (Cave, Fothergill,
Pyper, Gibson & Saunders, 2017, p.7). The considerations of health impacts
can sometimes be very narrow and the wider determinants of health on
existing and new populations have not been considered fully as part of the
EIA.
A HIA assesses health in a broader sense giving consideration to the wider
determinants of health (figure 1) and in particular the effects on vulnerable
populations who are more likely to experience health inequalities (Marmot,
2010).
It is therefore important to explore the potential health impacts and benefits
of/from a development (such as mineral extraction). Undertaking a HIA may
be an appropriate mechanism for assessing these health impacts and
benefits.

2.
Policy context
In order to achieve sustainable development, the National Planning Policy
Framework updated in 2019 3 (8 b) defines the social objective of the planning
system as follows:
‘to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that a
sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the needs of
present and future generations; and by fostering a well-designed and safe
built environment, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect
current and future needs and support communities’ health, social and cultural
well-being.’ (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, 2019).
This is supported by the National Planning Practice Guidance which states
that local planning authorities should ensure local plans and planning
decisions take health into consideration. This includes; “… health, social and
cultural wellbeing and the reduction of health inequalities”4
Following changes to EIA regulations in 2017, all EIAs are required to
consider the impact on human health. Because EIA’s are by definition
focussed on environmental concerns, they do not consider social/health
inequalities, and therefore cannot holistically assess health impact. The EIA
regulations are not prescriptive on how impact on human health is assessed,
however the Public Health position is that HIA is a tool that can assist
development applications in meeting the human health requirements.

3

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/81019
7/NPPF_Feb_2019_revised.pdf
4 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/health-and-wellbeing

Agenda Pack Page 24

12

3.

Hertfordshire County Council Position on HIAs

3.1 Thresholds for undertaking HIAs
Guidance is given in this position statement on the thresholds for which a HIA
should be sought in relation to different types of development. These have
been broken down into the following categories: housing, waste, minerals,
non-residential space and national significant infrastructure projects.
Thee thresholds noted in the following paragraphs are indicative only and the
County Council may require a HIA if there are vulnerable populations5 within
close proximity to the proposed development.
3.1.1 Housing
Proposals for 100 or more residential units. This threshold may be reduced
depending on the nature, scale and location of the development.
3.1.2 Waste
Proposals for waste management as follows
 Landfill of waste other than inert waste
 Thermal treatment of waste, or chemical treatment of waste
 Hazardous waste management installations
 Composting of waste over 10,000 tonnes green waste per annum
 Anaerobic digester
 Super household waste recycling centre
The above is not an exhaustive list. As waste management evolves
additional types of waste facilities may be added to the above list.
3.1.3 Minerals




New rail aggregate depots
New minerals workings where the surface area of the workings is being
increased
Other permanent infrastructure such as coated stone plants or readymix plants.

3.1.4 Non-residential space
No threshold set. HIA requirements will be determined by the nature, scale
and location of the development. A screening assessment must be
undertaken as per the recommendations in section 3.2.
Vulnerable populations are groups and communities at a higher risk for poor health as a
result of the barriers they experience to social, economic, political and environmental factors,
as well as limitations due to illness or disability.
5

Agenda Pack Page 25

13

3.1.5 National Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIP)
All projects which fall within the NSIP definition, for example, an airport
expansion. Where NSIP straddles other counties, HIA’s should be cross
boundary.
3.2 Methodology for undertaking HIAs
Table 1 sets out the guidance for each stage of the HIA process and includes
the recommended toolkits to be adopted. It is essential the HIA considers all
stages of the proposed development which includes: construction, operational
and decommissioning (if applicable).
As HIA guidance evolves, the recommended methodologies set out in Table 1
may change over time. It is recommended the developer / planning applicant
contacts Hertfordshire Public Health & the Local Planning Authority (LPA)
prior to commencing work on the HIA to confirm the information set out in
Table 1 is still current.
Table 1: Methodology recommendations at each stage of the HIA process
HIA Stage
Recommended Toolkit
Additional Information
Stage 1: Screening
Wales Health Impact
Screening stage to be
Assessment Support Unit completed even where
(WHIASU) screening
the development meets
6
toolkit
the threshold to trigger a
HIA. The information at
this stage helps to
inform scoping.
7
Stage 2: Scoping
WHIASU scoping toolkit
Involve Hertfordshire
Public Health as one of
the stakeholders.
The type of HIA required
(desktop, rapid or full
will be determined at the
scoping stage).
Stage 3: Assessment
To be determined by the
It is recommended the
person / organisation
HIA is undertaken by an
leading the HIA process.
independent body with
previous experience of
conducting HIAs.
Stage 4: Reporting /
Format to be determined
Feedback
by the person /
organisation leading the
HIA process.
Stage 5: Monitoring /
Management / and
6
7

Format to be determined
by the local planning

https://whiasu.publichealthnetwork.cymru/en/resources/
https://whiasu.publichealthnetwork.cymru/en/resources/

Agenda Pack Page 26

14

evaluation

authority and
Hertfordshire Public
Health.

In order to ensure the completeness and quality of the HIA:
(a) the developer must ensure that the HIA is prepared by competent
experts; and
(b) the HIA must be accompanied by a statement from the developer
outlining the relevant expertise or qualifications of such experts.
3.3 Quality assurance framework to assess HIA’s
The majority of HIA’s will be assessed using the Wales Health Impact
Assessment Support Unit (WHIASU) Quality Assurance Framework8.
However, the quality assurance framework used could change over time. It is
therefore recommended that the developer / planning applicant seeks
clarification from Hertfordshire Public Health and the LPA during the scoping
stage to ascertain which quality assurance framework will be used to assess
their HIA.
4.
Further information
Please contact the Hertfordshire Public Health department by email:
PublicHealth@hertfordshire.gov.uk
5.
References
Barton, H., & Grant, M. (2006). A health map for the local human habitat. The
Journal for the Royal Society for the Promotion of Health , 126(6), 252-253.
Cave, B., Fothergill, J., Pyper, R., Gibson, G. and Saunders, P. ( 2017).
Health in Environmental Impact Assessment: A Primer for a Proportionate
Approach. Retrieved June, 11, 2019 from
https://www.iema.net/assets/newbuild/documents/IEMA%20Primer%20on%2
0Health%20in%20UK%20EIA%20Doc%20V11.pdf
Marmot, M. (2010). Fair Society, Healthy Lives – The Marmot Review.
Retrieved June, 11, 2019 from
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/fair-society-healthylives-the-marmot-review/fair-society-healthy-lives-full-report-pdf.pdf
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (2019). National
Planning Policy Framework. Retrieved June, 11, 2019 from
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/807247/NPPF_Feb_2019_revised.pdf

8

https://whiasu.publichealthnetwork.cymru/files/8815/3545/2412/Complete_QA_Framework.pdf

Agenda Pack Page 27

15

NHS Health Scotland (2018). What are health inequalities? Retrieved June,
11, 2019 from http://www.healthscotland.scot/health-inequalities/what-arehealth-inequalities
Public Health England (2017). Health and Environmental Impact
Assessment: A Briefing for Public Health Teams in England. Retrieved June,
11, 2019 from
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/629207/Health_and_environmental_impact_assessment
.pdf
United Kingdom. Department of Health. (2010). Quantifying health impacts of
government policies. Retrieved June, 11, 2019, from
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/216003/dh_120108.pdf
World Health Organization (2018a). Definitions of HIA. Retrieved June, 11,
2019, from https://www.who.int/hia/about/defin/en/
World Health Organization (2018b). Frequently Asked Questions. Retrieved
June, 11, 2019, from https://www.who.int/about/who-we-are/frequently-askedquestions
World Health Organization (2018c). Glossary of terms used. Retrieved June,
11, 2019, from https://www.who.int/hia/about/glos/en/index1.html
Date of publication and document review
Publication date:
1st November 2019
Document review date:
1st November 2020

Agenda Pack Page 28

16

Agenda Item No.

4

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2019 AT 10:00AM
HEALTHY PLACES UPDATE
Report of the Director of Public Health
Authors:-

Bethan Clemence, Strategic Lead Healthy Places

Executive Member:-

Tim Hutchings, Public Health and Prevention

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To provide an update on the Healthy Places workstream, outlining
current priorities and ongoing projects, challenges and future areas for
development.

2.

Summary

2.1

It is widely accepted that the health of a population is determined by a
range of factors and that the greatest scope for improving the public’s
health lies outside the control of the NHS. Roughly 80% of our health is
shaped by wider determinants (i.e. our physical and social
environments). Local Authorities have significant scope to influence the
wider determinants.

2.2

The Healthy Places role was created in 2015 with a view to enabling
Public Health to engage with, and influence, the systems and
processes that shape the wider determinants of health. What started
as one officer has now developed into a Healthy Places team with an
incredibly broad portfolio of work.

2.3

This Panel has previously received reports regarding how work has
focussed on four key areas – planning, housing, transport and
environment. The last update 12 months ago1, and this report sets out
the progress made in these areas.

1

https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/Data/Public%20Health,%20Prevention%20and%20Performanc
e%20Cabinet%20Panel/201805101000/Agenda/Eta9LYDGCCqVXxj6AQNZnfUgCmLpWz.pdf

Agenda Pack Page 29

1

3.

Recommendation

3.1

That Panel note and comment on the content of this report.

4.

Background

4.1

This paper builds on previous reports to Panel2 that have outlined
progress and challenges in relation to the Healthy Places workstream.
An overarching account of the progress made since 2015 is set out in
Appendix 1. The following paragraphs pick out key highlights from each
of the key areas within the Healthy Places workstream.
Planning
Overview

4.2

The County Council’s approach for Public Health engagement in
planning is to respond to all Local Plan consultations, strategic
development and housing applications of over 100 homes.

4.3

Increasingly, officers within Public Health are working across local
authority boundaries and will seek to work collaboratively in our
responses where appropriate. For example, officers have worked with
Essex County Council, Harlow Borough Council and East Herts District
Council as part of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town (HGGT) health
workstream to commission the Town and Country Planning
Associations to produce a Healthy Towns Framework. This has been
adopted by the HGGT Board with the intention that it shapes planned
development of circa 30,000 homes across the Gilston and Harlow
area.

4.4

The Hertfordshire Health, Wellbeing and Planning Guidance ( “the
Guidance”) was published in 2017 and is available at
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/health-in-herts/healthyplaces/the-role-of-public-health-in-planning.aspx#howwework. An
update to the Guidance is planned to be undertaken in the latter half of
2019. Officers are increasingly seeing reference made to the Guidance

2

2018 report, Item 5
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId= 268&MeetingId=976&DF=
10%2f05%2f2018&Ver=2
2016 report, Item 7
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=267&MeetingId=969&DF=
24%2f11%2f2016&Ver=2
2015 report, Item 5
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=267&MeetingId=962&DF=
24%2f09%2f2015&Ver=2

Agenda Pack Page 30

2

in planning applications for housing, which is a notable achievement.
The challenge remains to build this into Local Plan policy across
Hertfordshire.
Health Impact Assessment
4.5

An area of planning work that has grown in significance over the last 12
months is that of Health Impact Assessment (HIA). This is detailed
further in the accompanying report being considered at the September
2019 Panel (agenda item 3).

4.6

HIA is a means of evidence-based policy making for improvement in
health. It is a combination of methods whose aim is to assess the
health consequences to a population of a policy, project or programme
that does not necessarily have health as its primary objective, and
assesses how developments, policies and projects could affect health.

4.7

The use of HIA in spatial planning is gathering pace nationally and
represents a robust way in which development can demonstrate
healthy placemaking.

4.8

There is no legal or statutory framework in England for HIA, however in
spatial planning it offers major developments a tool through which to
meet legal requirements for human health under the 2017
Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 3.

4.9

The County Council currently seeks HIAs where appropriate from
major housing developments, minerals and waste proposals and
National Strategic Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs) (High Speed 2,
airport expansion proposals).

4.10

The longer-term aim is to ensure HIA becomes part of our adopted
Planning Policy. For a Planning Policy’ to be established and adopted
by the County Council it must follow a prescribed process of drafting,
appraisal, public consultation and independent scrutiny.

4.11

This process is being followed by the County Council with the emerging
Minerals and Waste Local Plans and wording is being developed to
incorporate HIA into these Plans as policy.

4.12

In due course officers also aim to work with Hertfordshire’s Local
Planning Authorities (i.e. districts and boroughs) to incorporate HIA
within local plan policy.

3

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents/made

Agenda Pack Page 31

3

Housing
4.13

Public Health leads on the housing quality agenda, with a particular
focus in recent years on cold homes. Cold homes4 alone are estimated
to have contributed to 2,310 excess winter deaths in the South East of
England in 2017/18. The Department of Health estimates that for every
death relating to the cold, there are typically 8 non-fatal hospital
admissions. This suggests that in addition to the 2,310 deaths in
2017/18, the region saw 18,480 additional hospital admissions.

4.14

Cold homes are linked to :
• respiratory and cardiovascular conditions, falls, strokes, flu, poor
mental health
• higher risk of premature death
• higher risk for small infants needing hospital or primary care
admission

4.15

Hertfordshire is considered by many an area of affluence, however
there is a significant proportion of residents living in fuel poverty. The
latest Government statistics suggest that 8.3% of all homes in
Hertfordshire are considered fuel poor 5, with inefficient heating systems
one of the greatest contributors of fuel poverty.

4.16

The Hertfordshire Warmer Homes Scheme has provided support to
households directly affected by fuel poverty and ill-health related to
cold homes, enabling the occupants to keep their homes warm without
the fear of costly energy bills and heat loss due to thermal inefficiency.
Continued monitoring of the scheme will enable us to quantify how this
improves health and wellbeing over the longer term.

4.17

The Hertfordshire Warmer Homes Scheme aims to prevent avoidable
winter deaths and improve general health by tackling cold homes,
energy efficiency and fuel poverty, using Energy Company Obligation

Homes which have a very low temperature or a lower temperature than is normal or acceptable. The
currently available evidence base, alongside expert discussion, suggests indoor temperatures of at
least 18°C poses minimal risk to the health of a sedentary person, wearing suitable clothing. Below
18°C, negative health effects may occur (PHE, 2014
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7764
97/Min_temp_threshold_for_homes_in_winter.pdf)
4

5 Fuel poverty in England is measured using the Low Income High Costs (LIHC) indicator. Under the

LIHC indicator, a household is considered to be fuel poor if they have required fuel costs that are above
average (the national median level) and, were they to spend that amount, they would be left with a
residual income below the official poverty line (https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/fuel-povertystatistics)

Agenda Pack Page 32

4

funding (ECO). ECO is a government scheme which sets targets for
‘big 6’ energy suppliers6 to reduce fuel poverty and carbon emissions
among vulnerable clients. Targets include financially contributing
towards repair or replacement of faulty or old boilers or installing
insulation. Vulnerable households are defined as low income home
owners or renting privately (and have the landlord’s consent) as well as
having certain health conditions. See
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/health-in-herts/healthyplaces/warmer-homes/hertfordshire-warmer-homes-scheme.aspx for
more information.
4.18

Now nearing the end of its second year of operation, the scheme is led
by Public Health on behalf of the 10 District and Borough Councils
across Hertfordshire, using ECO funds available and ‘topping up’ with
local authority funding to ensure our residents benefit from either free
or low-cost home energy improvements.

4.19

A total of approximately 215 installations have taken place since the
project started in 2017 (approximately 160 in year 1 and 55 in year 2).
Overall, 1480 referrals (838 in year 1 and 642 in year 2) have been
received but only 15% have been converted into installations mainly
due to the high level of cancellations. This figure falls to 9% using only
year 2 figures. The main reasons for cancellations in year 2 is no
response to attempts to contact and individual following an initial
referral, or a referred individual is not eligible as their income is too
high.

4.20

The operation of scheme has not been without significant challenge,
most notably at the end of Year 1 and the departure of the original
external service provider. Public Health continued to deliver Year 2 of
the service in-house with a very small team. During this time, the
scheme also supported 25 households with no hot-water or heating to
receive fully-funded emergency boiler replacement at a cost of totalling
£29,000. The emergency fund operated on a first come, first served
basis and was solely funded by Public Health.

4.21

Currently there are another 178 possible installations in the pipeline,
however, it is expected that some of these will end in cancellations
based on current conversion rate of referrals to installations. The
scheme is still receiving referrals and based on year 2 figures the
scheme can expect approximately a further 500 referrals before the
end of the contract.

6 the United Kingdom's largest energy suppliers, supplying gas and electricity. The Big Six are British
Gas, EDF Energy, E.ON, Npower, Scottish Power, and SSE.

Agenda Pack Page 33

5

4.22

Public Health is committed to providing the scheme through to March
31st, 2020, and is currently exploring options beyond that.
Strategic Housing

4.23

Public Health has also led wider work looking at the strategic housing
and health agenda, working at senior officer level across the county to
identify housing and health challenges, roles and responsibilities, and
opportunities for collaborative working.

4.24

A Housing and Health workshop in September 2018 was held as part
of the Public Health Board, which was very well attended with
representation across the Hertfordshire Public Sector -both local
authorities and NHS.

4.25

A key outcome was the mutual desire of partner organisations to
improve levels of understanding between local authorities and health
colleagues on housing roles and responsibilities. Public Health has
subsequently mapped roles and responsibilities in a way that is
informative for professionals. This is available at
http://hertfordshire.gov.uk/housingprofessionals and has been well
received across partner organisations.
Environment – Air Quality

4.26

Over the last 18 months Public Health, working in collaboration with
Environment and Highways colleagues, developed the Hertfordshire
County Council Air Quality Strategy ( the Strategy) and a supporting
Implementation Plan in recognition of the growing need to tackle poor
air quality. These were taken through a tri-Panel process and were
adopted by Cabinet in April 2019. The documents are available at
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/health-in-herts/healthyplaces/healthy-places.aspx#air

4.27

The purpose of these documents is to clearly set out the County
Council’s policy position on the matter in order to a) foster collaborative
working moving forwards and; b) avoid ambiguity and duplication. The
Strategy sits as a daughter document to the recently adopted Local
Transport Plan 7 in support of its air quality policy.

Agenda Pack Page 34

6

4.28

Public Health will now focus on two key areas of work in support of the
air quality agenda:

Developing the Implementation Plan to drive forward Action,
with oversight from the Corporate Air Quality group (chaired by the
Director of Public Health with membership comprising nominated
representatives from Environment, Property and Highways);

Working to develop a collaborative countywide strategic
approach to air quality in partnership with the Herts and Beds Air
Quality Forum (led and attended by District and Borough
Environmental Health teams).
Transport

4.29

A lot of the early progress made with the healthy places workstream
was in relation to transport, as previously reported to Panel8. Public
Health now has an established, collaborative and productive working
relationship with Transport Planning and Highways colleagues. Officers
have provided advice and input into the development of Local
Transport Plan 4 and the Active Travel Strategy.

4.30

Hertfordshire’s recently published Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4)9 has
established a road user hierarchy that prioritises pedestrians, cyclists
and public transport over the car.

4.31

It acknowledges that a combination of policies and improvements will
be required to tip the balance in favour of non-car modes and goes on
to say that supporting documents such as the Active Travel Strategy
(under development currently) will set more specific policies and
guidance on infrastructure required.

4.32

The most effective mechanisms for boosting walking, cycling and
public transport, improving health, air quality and road safety comprise
of integrated and complimentary interventions.

4.33

Public Health has worked with Highways colleagues to adopt a Healthy
Streets approach which offers an integrated and complimentary set of
interventions, including an assessment tool, which focuses on
supporting transport mode shift particularly in urban areas of

8

Item 5,
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/Data/Public%20Health,%20Localism%20and%20Libraries%20C
abinet%20Panel/201611241000/Agenda/pjKwujWTiuAkotYiQ8nPHmT9LrIA4i.pdf
9 https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/media-library/documents/about-the-council/consultations/ltp4-localtransport-plan-4-complete.pdf

Agenda Pack Page 35

7

Hertfordshire. The approach is in place across London, where it has
been well received since launching in 2014.
4.34

This approach should be applied both to the re-design of existing
streets using existing allocated resource, and the design of new
developments, and will be set out in more detail in the forthcoming
Active Travel Strategy due for consideration later this year

5.

Outcomes

5.1

Aside from the specific outcomes related to individual work areas,
there are broader outcomes achieved with respect to the impact the
Healthy Places agenda is having across the system.

5.2

Health is growing to become a prominent consideration in relation to a
number of agenda’s within the Healthy Places portfolio, most notably
Transport Planning and Highways, but also within the wider local
authority community in relation to housing and health. Public Health is
a now leading the air quality agenda which historically suffered from a
lack of resource and coordination.

5.3

Public Health are working effectively and successfully on with partners
on the Healthy Places agenda, with notable joint pieces of work
including:
 Housing and Health (working collaboratively with District/Borough
heads of housing and specifically with Stevenage Borough Council
to shape the strategic countywide position on housing and health);


Housing quality ( leading the Housing Quality Working Group which
pulls together various stakeholders across the county, including all
District/Boroughs, Fire and Rescue, both Clinical Commissioning
Groups, Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust, Adult Care Services
and Herts Help – we’ve had some limited engagement with the
Buildings Research Establishment. This group is sponsoring a
number of projects aiming to work to tackle the impact of poor
housing quality on health);



Air Quality (Public Health now lead and coordinated the County
Council Strategic Response to air quality, working across a number
of directorates and service areas. Public Health is also viewed by
many of our District colleagues as having a lead on this agenda, in
terms of being the conduit towards broader engagement with the
County Council . Officers are trying to simplify the way in which the
system works on air quality, but this is not without its challenges);

Agenda Pack Page 36

8



Healthy Streets has seen us develop an agenda in collaboration
with our Highways colleagues and which is now beginning to
influence highways schemes as well as shape highways policy and
strategic transport planning.

5.4

Finally, the Hertfordshire Warmer Homes Scheme has seen Public
Health lead a partnership project with direct outcomes for our residents
on behalf of all 10 District and Borough Councils, all of whom have
contributed financially (a notable success in itself). This project was
borne out of the Housing Quality Working Group, recognising a shared,
countywide priority. Public Health added value through the ability to pull
together the necessary components of such a large scheme, including
commissioning, procurement, project and contract management. The
benefit to Public Health has been the opportunity to target vulnerable
households and emphasis the health outcomes from a scheme which
would traditionally focus on energy efficiency. The scheme has not
been without significant challenge and dedicated resource is vital to
make such a scheme work.

5.5

Public Health is are supporting the prevention agenda through our work
to promote and enable good housing quality, air quality, spatial
planning, transport planning etc all acts as a way to both prevent poor
health and improve health – if done properly. Public Health’s
engagement in these areas, our advocacy at the strategic level and
influencing of policy development is incrementally getting the links to
health on the radar. A lot more needs to be done, but a lot has been
achieved (working from a position of extremely limited engagement 4
years ago).

6.

Next Steps

6.1

The Healthy Places workstream has evolved significantly since its
inception almost 5 years ago, and there is now a Healthy Places team
reflecting how this area of public health continues to grow in
significance. The original Strategic Plan focussed on four key work
areas – these still remain a priority, with an additional workstream for
air quality in its own right, and its links to the emerging
sustainability/climate emergency work being undertaken corporately.

6.2

To reflect the successful engagement Public Health has had in a range
of strategic issues such as the growth agenda, the consequential
increased generation of work and the resulting growth in staff resource,
a review of these priority areas will be undertaken in early 2020 as a

Agenda Pack Page 37

9

stocktake of committed projects and business as usual tasks with a
view to developing individual work programmes for each area. By way
of example, a six month work programme for planning and transport is
included in Appendix 2.
7.

Financial Context

7.1

The Healthy Places workstream currently has a nominal budget, with
most of the financial requirements provided through staff resource. The
last 18 months have seen the recruitment of a small team to support
the delivery of housing projects and our continued engagement with
planning and highways (managed within the wider Public Health
budget).

8.

Equalities implications

8.1

When considering proposals placed before Members, it is important
that they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered
the equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

8.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

8.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited
under the Act;(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it and; (c) foster good relations between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The
protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age;
disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion and belief, sex and sexual
orientation.

8.4

Given the strategic nature of the Healthy Places workstream EqIAs will
be undertaken where appropriate and necessary for individual projects
as part of the wider programme of work. That aside, the Healthy Places
agenda is not considered to have potential negative implications for
County Council staff or the wider public in relation to the statutory
protected characteristics. It is hoped that, over time, the influence of

Agenda Pack Page 38

10

the agenda on Hertfordshire’s population and wider determinants will
be a positive one in terms of reducing health inequalities.
Background Information


As per the hyperlinks in the report

Agenda Pack Page 39

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1: Healthy Places Workstream – Progress Summary 2015-2019
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/Health-in-Herts/Healthy-places/Healthy-places.aspx
2015 Position
Housing

Tasks for 2015/16

Progress 2016

Progress 2017/18

Progress 2019

Future Actions

















Starting to engage with key partners
within the County Council
Starting to identify external
stakeholders to engage with









Define the housing ‘scope’
Establish clear priorities and key
messages
Identify how Public Health can make
better linkages with stakeholders
Map housing and health priorities
Identify public health intelligence on
housing priorities
Identify and establish working links
with housing stakeholders
Other projects
Establish how we can use the JSNA
appropriately and effectively
Engage directly with strategic
partners and key stakeholders to
identify common priorities







Housing and Health report identified
three key areas – quality, availability,
accessibility.
Stakeholder mapping and network
mapping
Engagement with HWB and Strategy
identified lead role for public health
around housing quality.
PH Board subgroup on housing
quality – approved TOR and action
plan. Priorities identified around cold
homes.
Links with stakeholders – attend
various Boards/forums including
Supported Accommodation Strategic
Board, Heads of Housing group,
EHDC Housing Forum, Herts & Beds
Environmental Health Housing
Group






Agenda Pack Page 41



Housing Quality JSNA publishedi
Herts Warmer Homes Scheme starts
operating (December 2017) to tackle
excess winter deaths and poor
health outcomes from cold homes.
Healthy Places Officer appointed
with specific housing remit
Housing Quality Working Group
running for a year, established as a
sub-group to Public Health Board to
work collaboratively on housing
quality and health issues with
District/Borough authorities
(environmental health and housing),
Adult Care, NHS partners and Fire
and Rescue.
Public Health leads countywide
strategic review of housing and
health, reporting back to
Hertfordshire Public Sector Chief
Execs group
Public Health Board runs Housing
and Health workshop, attended by all
relevant public sector colleagues,
identifies short-term priority to
understand roles and
responsibilities.ii











January 2019 sees Public Health,
Heads of Housing and Stevenage
Borough Council’s final report back
to Hertfordshire Public Sector Chief
Execs, with housing prioritised in the
Hertfordshire Public Sector Action
Plan 2018-2019iii
Public Health coordinate internal
strategic housing report for SMB
leading to agreement to create an
HCC Corporate Housing Group
chaired by the Director of
Resources.
Herts Warmer Homes enters second
year of operation, delivered in-house
by Public Health, with the creation of
a small Warmer Homes team
Explore parallel pilot project with
Hertsmere Borough Council
(Environmental Health), utilising Fire
and Rescue thermal imaging
equipment to identify cold homes
Housing Quality Continuing
Professional Development training
for health and social care
professionals – programme
developed in collaboration with
District Environmental Health
colleagues; first training event
delivered summer 2019
In response to highlighted lack of
understanding across the system of
housing and health roles and
responsibilities, our Health
Professional pages now include
information which maps this for
colleaguesiv







Corporate Housing Group to be
convened with specific short-term
action plan
Explore broader roll-out and
application of Housing Quality CPD
training
Refresh of Housing Quality Working
Group priorities and Action Plan
Collaboration with countywide
housing projects where appropriate
e.g. Watford Borough Council – led
Hoarding Project
Delivery of Herts Warmer Homes
Scheme to March 31st 2020

Transport



Engaging well with key partners
within the County Council
Working with external stakeholders
to identify common priorities












Establish clear priorities & key

messages
Establish evidence base
Identify how Public Health can make
better linkages with stakeholders
Respond to transport plan making

Ensure appropriate guidance
available to inform transport planning
processes
Work with the Highways Authority to
ensure PH priorities are taken into
account

Input when appropriate to the
development and updating of key
documents
Identify areas to add value
Support delivery of existing active 
travel projects where necessary
Contribute to and support

development of new transport
initiatives with public health
outcomes

The Planning and Place lead sits on 
a number of strategic groups
including, Transport Planning Board,
Sustainable and Active Travel Group
and the Road Safety Strategic
Partnership.
Public Health has been actively 
consulted on, and contributed to, a
number of strategic documents 
including the Local Transport Plan 4,
Growth and Transport Plans, Roads
in Herts Design Guidance
Identified shared priorities have led to
numerous examples of collaborative
working, for example the Health
Benefits of Active Travel briefing.
Have contributed to bids for funding
by adding the health dynamic as a
supporting factor.
Added value to the GTP process
through provision of health evidence.

Public Health-led series of
workshops for Highways and
Environment colleagues exploring
the application of Transport for
London’s Healthy Streets approach
to Hertfordshire
Contribution to writing of forthcoming
HCC Active Travel Strategy
Continued input into Local Transport
Plan 4 2018-31, formally adopted in
2018 with clear reference to health
and wellbeing outcomesv





Continued input into transport related
forums including Road Safety (e.g.
creating working links on roadrelated suicides) and Active Travel
Main focus has been to work
collaboratively on the air quality
agenda (see below)

See Appendix 2
Continued maintenance of
momentum and working relationship.
Future collaboration particularly in
relation to delivery of Air Quality
agenda – see below.

2015 Position
Planning

Tasks for 2015/16

Progress 2016

Progress 2017/18

Progress 2019

Future Actions











Healthy Places Officer appointed
with specific remit for planning –
immediate increase in planning
application response rate
Routinely seeking or recommending
Health Impact Assessments in
planning consultation responses
Early engagement in Luton airport
expansion proposals
Health Impact Assessment Position
Statement developed (see
accompanying panel paper)
Joint consultation response to 8,500
homes Gilston application with
Essex Public Health
Member of Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town health workstream;
engagement in the commissioning of
the HGGT Healthy Town
Framework, working with TCPA

See Appendix 2

Air Quality focus
Herts and Beds Air Pollution Alert
System up and running, led by
District/Borough authorities,
supported by HCCix
HCC Air Quality Strategyx and
Implementation Planxi (Public Healthled) adopted
Delivery programme for
implementation of Air Quality
Strategy underway (Public Healthled)
Third PM2.5 monitoring report to be
published Autumn 2019
Summary document on the
application and limitations of air
quality data publishedxii









Aware of the spatial planning
processes across Hertfordshire and
timescales and routes to
engagement;
Taking forward steps through initial
engagement in individual planning
documents, but on an ad hoc basis;
Engaging with key partners within
the County Council around planning
issues
Formulating our criteria for
responding to spatial planning and
infrastructure development, but this
needs to be refined
Working with external stakeholders
to identify common priorities






Develop an evidence base for some
areas; improve, refine and enhance
evidence for others and disseminate
to a wide audience
Establish how we can use the JSNA
appropriately and effectively
Agree priorities
Engage directly with strategic
partners and key stakeholders
Promote planning and place for
health across Hertfordshire







Threshold for response to planning
applications set at 100 dwellings or
more
Local plan engagement – responses
submitted to all local plan
consultations
Masterplanning engagement
Planning application responses as
and when received
Air quality issues in planning
highlighted consistently
Direct engagement with a number of
District/Borough planning teams
(WHBC, EHDC, NHBC, SBC, BBC)




Hertfordshire’s Health, Wellbeing
and Planning Guidance publishedvi
Guidance utilised and referenced by
other local authorities
EHDC Local Plan adopted with
Health, Wellbeing and Planning
Guidance referenced in support of
specific Health and Wellbeing policy




vii





Engagement in early Gilston

masterplanning – jointly with Essex
Public Health
Health Impact Assessment identified 
as a priority work area for
development
Collaborative work with Environment 
colleagues to build health and
wellbeing into Minerals and Waste
Local Plan processes

Environment


Agenda Pack Page 42



Engaging with key partners within
the County Council
Working with external stakeholders
to identify common priorities












Establish evidence base

Utilise existing guidance and
experiences from other organisations
Sharing of good practice
Making links and connections
between agendas and stakeholders
Literature review

Explore how JSNA can support the
Local Nature Partnership
Engage with development of Herts
Green Infrastructure Investment Plan
Identify PH priorities in relation to
green space and green infrastructure
– develop strategic position
Develop strategic position statement

for public health to feed into future
minerals and waste planning
Respond to Minerals Strategy
Consultation


Public Health has been actively
consulted on, and contributed to, a
number of strategic documents
including – the Hertfordshire Flood
Risk Management Strategy, the
Rights of Way Improvement Plan and
the Minerals Local Plan.
Public Health undertook a literature
review for the Local Nature
Partnership on the role of the natural
environment in promoting good
health
and
wellbeing.
The
Partnership is now looking at how this
can translate into actions taken
forward at the local level.
Public Health has provided guidance
on a number of minerals and waste
proposals, including the Rye House
Energy Recovery Facility proposal
and the Ware Park sand and gravel
extraction proposal.
Public Health is supporting and
working
collaboratively
with
environment colleagues in the
development of the Hertfordshire
Green Infrastructure Strategy.













Air Quality focus
Air Quality JSNA publishedviii
Countywide Member Air Quality
seminar held January 2018,
facilitated by the Chair, UK Health
Forum
Series of HCC Officer workshops
held 2017/2018
Commitment from Members and
SMB to develop HCC Air Quality
Strategy
SMB agree to establish Corporate
Air Quality Group, chaired by
Director of Public Health
Strategy development during 2018
Continued Public Health
representation at Herts and Beds Air
Quality Forum
First two years reporting of real-time
PM2.5 monitoring across
Hertfordshire, funded by Public
Health
Air Quality raised as standard issue
in response to planning
consultations.









https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/microsites/jsna/jsna-documents/housing-quality-health-jsna-final-draft-july2017.pdf
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/health-in-herts/professionals/healthy-places-professionals.aspx
iii https://www.leadinghertfordshire.com/storage/app/media/A%20Better%20Deal%20for%20Hertfordshire%20FINAL%20Jan%2018.pdf
iv https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/health-in-herts/professionals/housing/healthy-places-for-housing-professionals.aspx
v https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/media-library/documents/about-the-council/consultations/ltp4-local-transport-plan-4-complete.pdf
vi https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/media-library/documents/public-health/hertfordshires-health-and-wellbeing-planning-guidance-may-2017.pdf
vii Chapter 19 https://www.eastherts.gov.uk/districtplan
viii https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/microsites/jsna/jsna-documents/jsna-summaries/es-air-quality-jsna.pdf and https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/microsites/jsna/jsna-documents/air-quality-jsna-v1.1.pdf
ix https://www.airqualityengland.co.uk/local-authority/knr-subscription
x https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/media-library/documents/about-the-council/data-and-information/air-quality-strategy.pdf
xi https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/media-library/documents/about-the-council/data-and-information/air-quality-implementation-plan.pdf
xii https://www.hertshealthevidence.org/documents/thematic/airqualitydatafaq-briefing-2019-07.pdf
i

ii







Develop Countywide strategic
approach to air quality in partnership
with District and Borough authorities.
Delivery of quick wins and short-term
projects in support of HCC Strategy
Development of public facing
information on Indoor Air Quality
based on forthcoming NICE
guidance.
Contribution to emerging
sustainability and climate emergency
strategy and work programme.
Continue to respond to wider
environment priorities; maintain
working relationships.

Appendix 2: Healthy Places – Planning & Transport

Description
/ Aims

Agenda Pack Page 43

Output

Hertfordshire Health &
Wellbeing Planning
Guidance Review
Document needs to be
reviewed and updated,
particularly the evidence
sections.

Revised PDF available
online.

Health Impact
Assessment

Public Health Data &
Intelligence

S106 Contributions

To provide clarity both
internally and publicly on
HIA, HCC’s position on
when it should be used,
who should do it, which
methodology to use and
when, how it will be
assessed.
To improve Public Health
knowledge of HIA
To improve planning
colleagues’ awareness and
understanding of HIA
To be crystal clear to
Elected Members and the
Public what an HIA is and
what it can and cannot do
Be in a position to lobby
PHE/ADPH/DCLG on HIA

Work with PH Intelligence
and Evidence team to look
at better ways to use data
more effectively when
engaging in local planning
processes.

Explore opportunities to
justify seeking S106
contributions from
planning applications.

1.
2.

3.
4.
5.

Timescale

Late 2019/Early 2020

Emerging Work Programme 2019/202

HCC Policy Position
on HIA *
Online statement
clarifying the role of
HIA and what it
can/cannot do *
HIA guidance note
for planners and
developers *
HIA training for
planning colleagues
Lobbying statements
for nationally
adopted HIA
methodology and
consistency

Started and ongoing

We need to be able to
clearly articulate public
health priorities in a way
that can influence growth
and development. We
need evidence that is local
and specific and that can
be used to justify the need
for healthy placeshaping.

Ideally a clear set of local
data / intelligence that
can be consistently
referenced in response to:
- District/Borough
Local Plans
- Specific Planning
applications
Realistically, an agreed
understanding of what
data can be used to
support engagement with
planning, growth and
development – and where
to find it

tbc

In particular,
understanding the impact
that growth will have on
demand for school nurses
and health visitors, and
how we can articulate this
as a S106 requirement for
strategic sites.
Explore the PH remit in
relation to physical
activity infrastructure and
understand who seeks
S106 for this currently.
Ultimately a clearly set
out framework and
justification for seeking
S106 contributions for
public health
infrastructure.
A clear understanding and
written summary of
where we can reasonably
seek S106, and what for
(i.e. physical
infrastructure,
behavioural change
programmes, mental
health (this might require
some real out of the box,
blue skies thinking on
what might be possible!))
A clear understanding of
where other organisations
may seek S106 for
projects that have public
health outcomes (e.g.
active travel, sports
facilities )
Started and ongoing

Healthy Streets
/Sustainable Travel
Towns
Supporting the ongoing
development of the
Healthy Streets Approach
in Hertfordshire

Local Plans

Planning Applications

Working Relationships

100% response rate for all
Local Plan consultations,
including EIA Scoping
Opinions

Developing existing and
new working relationships
with Hertfordshire planning
colleagues

To understand how Public
Health can work
collaboratively with
Highways and add value –
particular with regards
monitoring and
evaluation.

Influencing Plan making to
include explicit health and
wellbeing policy hooks

Aim is to enable a 100%
response rate for all
strategic site applications
- Early engagement
in masterplanning
- Responding to EIA
Scoping Opinions
- Requiring HIA’s
where
appropriate
- Referring to public
health guidance

To understand and
influence the inclusion of
this approach within the
county Sustainable Travel
Towns programme.

Ultimately, the
implementation of
highways schemes that
deliver healthy streets
A clear process for
monitoring and
evaluation.

Explore externally
facilitated workshops with
TCPA to generate better
engagement with local
plan making.

Consistent and timely
responses to Local Plan
consultations - formal
Timely engagement with
local plan development –
informally
Local Plans have a Health
and Wellbeing Policy

Working to ensure Public
Health is notified of all
planning applications for:
- Developments of
more than 100
homes
- Schools
- Care homes
Consistent responses to
planning applications for
strategic sites
Full engagement with
HCC- promoted sites.
Receipt of, and response
to, HIAs

Local Plans have reference
to the public health
guidance
Local Plans have a policy
position on HIA

Ongoing, but need to
understand Highways’
timescales and milestones

Ongoing

Ongoing

Develop working
relationship with Herts
Property colleagues and
Herts Living to ensure that
healthy placemaking is
given appropriate priority in
HCC-led developments.

- Input into development
of Active Travel
Strategy
- Input into development
of Accessibility Strategy
- Agreed working
protocol with G&I Team
– when they’ll
represent us and when
the won’t
- Clarity on when we will
have to work directly
with local planning
authorities.
- Clear understanding of
how we liaise with
other HCC services to
ensure consistency
(where appropriate),
avoid conflicting advice
or where a difference in
expert opinion, to have
awareness that this
exists

Ongoing

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item No.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY, 18, SEPTEMBER 2019 AT 10:00AM

5

HERTFORDSHIRE’S HEALTHY WORKPLACE PROGRAMME
Report of the Director of Public Health
Authors: -

Piers Simey, Consultant in Public Health.
Zach Mather, Project Manager (Tel: 01992 588073)
Rushma Patel, Business Manager, Public Health (Tel:
01442 453625)

Executive Members: - Tim Hutchings, Public Health and Prevention

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To describe how workplace health and wellbeing is currently being
addressed for Hertfordshire County Council (“the County Council”)
through the Healthy Workplace Programme.

2.

Summary

2.1

All employers have a role in ensuring the health and wellbeing of their
staff and healthy workplace programmes can be an important part of
this role. Healthy workplace programmes are well received and valued
by staff, with the potential for long lasting impact on their health and
wellbeing. In addition, employers can benefit from programmes that
improve staff sickness levels, turnover and productivity. There is clear
evidence that comprehensive programmes can impact on these
outcomes.

2.2

Many organisations across Hertfordshire value healthy workplace
programmes and have committed resources to their delivery. Over the
past year Hertfordshire County Council has rolled out a programme that
develops and draws on a network of Healthy Workplace Champions,
provides services and training for staff, and encourages staff to develop
initiatives together that meet needs and interests. This Healthy
Workplace programme will be reviewed in December 2019 for its
impact over a full year. Results of the review and options for roll out to
further public and private sector organisations will be presented to this
Panel in early 2020 as officers are of the view that a phased approach
to extending the scheme initially to the ten districts/boroughs and then
other organisations in Hertfordshire could enable mutual learning on
effective, accessible and affordable good practice which could be

Agenda Pack Page 45

1

shared widely across the county. A key focus for this approach would
be to add value to what is already in place
3.
3.1

Recommendations
Panel is asked to: Note and comment on the content of this report.
Note and comment upon the Director of Public Health’s view that
supporting employees to improve their health and wellbeing is an
appropriate priority for the County Council, as it can benefit both
individual staff members and the organisation as a whole.
 Note that a further paper will be presented at Panel in early 2020,
setting out findings from the first full year of the Healthy Workplace
programme. The paper will also cover potential next steps for
extending the programme in the ten districts/boroughs and other
workplaces from April 2020.



4.

Background

4.1

There is clear evidence that good work in a safe, encouraging and
supportive working environment improves health and wellbeing across
people’s lives. All employers have a role in ensuring the health and
wellbeing of their staff: action can range from senior staff actively
prioritising workplace health and supportive workplace policies, through
to encouraging healthy behaviours such as taking regular breaks,
supporting mental wellbeing, being active, and eating well. With people
often spending a third of their waking hours at work, the workplace
remains an ideal and effective setting for tailored health improvement.

4.2

Comprehensive healthy workplace programmes benefit employees and
employers, helping to reduce sickness levels, promote productivity and
reduce staff turnover. There is also potential for return on investment of
between £2 - £10 for every £1 spent. Workplace interventions that
promote mental wellbeing can also reduce costs by £495 - £5,160 per
affected employee per year. Mental wellbeing and musculoskeletal
issues are the two largest causes of staff sickness for the County
Council. There is clear evidence for the potential impact of healthy
workplace programmes on these issues.

4.3

Public Health commissioned a healthy workplace programme during
2013-16 delivered by Business in the Community, supported by Human
Resources. The programme worked with 84 public and private sector
organisations. More than 400 in house Workplace Health Champions
were supported, and more than 1,400 staff were trained on mental
health first aid courses. An approach that built on this success at
significantly lower cost has been developed within the County Council.
Following an initial set up phase, this approach has been delivered
across the County Council since January 2019. Interest in the
programme can also peak at key parts of the year, such as around the
New Year when people reflect on their health. The programme also

Agenda Pack Page 46

2

needs to have sufficient capacity to give people meaningful options to
take up a range of opportunities.
4.4

Organisations will usually have initiatives that support the health and
wellbeing of their staff already in place. A key issue is whether further
opportunities could be added sustainably and add further value. Public
Health is in a good position to offer advice and support for local
organisations ready to enhance their existing healthy workplace offer,
due to the department’s experience and established links.

5.

Current health and wellbeing support for County Council
departments

5.1

Officers within Human Resources (HR) and Public Health are working
jointly to support and stimulate action on health and wellbeing across
the County Council. Initiatives have been developed for staff following
review of good practice, and directly by staff following interest within
teams.

5.2

HR has set up a web-based directory “Herts Rewards” which provides
a range of savings opportunities and benefits aiming to support staff
wellbeing. This includes discounted leisure centre and exercise
memberships, access to independent financial advice, the ability to
purchase additional annual leave, access to an employee assistance
programme, and a central portal providing advice/support and
promotion of on-site activities – part of an evolving Wellbeing Action
Plan.

5.3

The paragraphs below detail key health and wellbeing related initiatives
developing across the County Council.

5.4

Workplace Health Champions are supported centrally to share
information, raise awareness, signpost and initiate action within their
teams as part of their day job (half a day a month). The Workplace
Health Champions are trained in mental health support and Making
Every Contact Count (MECC). There are currently 38 Health
Champions fully trained (Table 1). The aim is for at least 70 Workplace
Health Champions to be in place by March 2020, a ratio of around 1
Workplace Health Champion per 75 staff. An individual’s role as a
Workplace Health Champion is included in their annual appraisal,
enabling this role to be recognised as a core part of the individual’s job
role.

Agenda Pack Page 47

3

Table 1: Health Champions, by County Council Department
County Council
Department

Workplace
Health
Champions
Trained

Workplace
Health
Champions per
staff ratio

Adult Care Services

16

142

Children’s Services

9

210

Resources

8

198

Environment and
Infrastructure

4

120

Public Health

1

79

TOTAL

38

5.4.1 Workplace Health Champions have publicised county wide initiatives,
such as the Mass Health Walk and (stair) climbing Mount Everest.
They have delivered mental health awareness training within their
teams, signposting individuals for support, developed regular initiatives
like walking, Tai Chi, Yoga, running, and meditation groups, as well as
promoted health campaigns. Workplace Health Champions meet
regularly and receive a quarterly newsletter to share what they have
done within their teams and stimulate ideas for further action. This case
study video shows two Workplace Health Champions talking about their
impact with colleagues https://youtu.be/C0Dd-wG6TI8.
5.5

Health Improvement Campaigns and Communications such as
“Stoptober” (smoking) and “It’s Never too Late” (physical activity) have
been publicised directly to County Council staff, as well as residents.
The Year of Physical Activity was also promoted with staff. Workplace
Health Champions can help to amplify the reach of these
communications within their teams.

5.6

NHS Health Checks for staff - NHS Health Checks help to identify
those people with as yet undiagnosed conditions and can help people
reduce future risk of having a heart attack, stroke, high blood pressure,
or diabetes. They are offered at work for free to improve access for
those who struggle to attend their general practice. 466 NHS Health
Checks have been completed up to the end of May 2019 within the
County Council, (including for Serco and Ringway staff – see Chart 1).
A further 111 have been carried across the districts/boroughs.

Agenda Pack Page 48

4

Chart 1: NHS Health Checks carried out in the County Council, by
month

5.7

Blood Pressure Checks have started to be offered to staff by the public
health service. These can be a standalone check with assurance or
further follow up or may lead to eligible people wanting to have a full
NHS Health Check or a similar health “MOT”.

5.8

Support to Make Every Contact Count (MECC) - Brief MECC I-learning
is available to all County Council staff, covering the main unhealthy
behaviours and simple actions that can make the difference. Face to
face training and support has also been delivered to frontline staff in the
Older Adults Social Work team, the Fire & Rescue Service, and in the
Libraries, to enable them to initiate brief interventions with their clients.
Frontline staff who receive this training need to commit to supporting
residents as part of their work. They also need to have a role where
advising on health improvement is seen as broadly appropriate.

5.9

Mental health training course - Hertfordshire Health Improvement
Service devised a more tailored and cheaper alternative to Mental First
Aid Training. This is currently offered to Workplace Health Champions
as part of their core training and covers defining mental health,
identifying signs of poor mental health, improving confidence in talking
about mental health, and signposting onto sources of support. External
mental health first aid courses are also available – around 40 First
Aiders at main sites have been trained in mental health first aid and
there are i-Learn modules on mental health at work for managers, and
resilience and wellbeing. Organisations on the Health & Wellbeing
Board were recently offered a co-ordinated training programme by the
Director of Public Health.

5.10 Volunteering strategy for staff – HR have been supported by Public
Health to develop a volunteering strategy for the County Council. This
strategy enables staff to give their own time into County Council
services, fulfilling one of the recognised Five Ways to Wellbeing. One
popular initiative has been the volunteering with dog’s initiative. Staff
bring their dogs in their own time to support services such as the

Agenda Pack Page 49

5

Special Education Needs and Disability (SEND) unit, Day Centres, and
Drug & Alcohol rehabilitation.
5.11 Tobacco Harm Reduction – Hertfordshire was one of the first areas in
the country to develop a policy on e-cigarettes (in 2016). The policy is
county wide and has been used by the County Council and other
organisations. Work is currently underway developing a Smoke Free
Policy for the County Council.
5.12 Physical Activity – the County Council’s cycling team launched a pool
bicycle scheme in June 2019 for staff. This adds to the offer available
for active commuters, including secure bike parking, lockers, showers,
a salary sacrifice scheme for bike purchase, and a bicycle users’ group.
Stair climbing motivational signs are included across the three main
sites.
5.12.1 The eleven Hertfordshire local authorities worked closely to deliver the
Year of Physical Activity, with information on local opportunities, joint
events like the annual mass health walk, and specific targeted
campaigns promoted to staff, as well as residents. Further information
on becoming more active and other healthy behaviours is available on
the Health in Herts webpages, as well as local district/borough
websites. Discounted membership has also been negotiated for staff
with a range of leisure centres and exercise opportunities.
5.13 Working with occupational health – Public Health supported the retender of the occupational health service and the Employee Assistance
Programme (“EAP”) undertaken by HR, contributing to the
specification. Referrals to the Health Improvement Service have also
been received from occupational health and the EAP.
5.14 Smart Working (a more flexible approach to working) – Public Health
was the first County Council department to apply Smart Working
approaches for all staff. This showed that the approach was realistic
and could be rolled out with confidence across the organisation.
6.

Next steps

6.1

Public Health is working with all County Council worksites with the aim
of going Smoke free by April 2020. Consultation with staff and unions
will underpin this approach which has worked well in other local
authorities.

6.2

The Healthy Workplace programme will continue to be delivered across
the County Council, with a recruitment and engagement programme in
place for the rest of this financial year.

6.3

A review of the Healthy Workplace programme in December 2019 will
determine impact and plans for the future. In addition, a Healthy

Agenda Pack Page 50

6

Workplace offer could be made to all ten districts/boroughs and other
workplaces from April 2020. This could include reviewing what is
currently in place, with recommendations on what could add further
value for both organisations. There is already interest in mental health
training within the districts/boroughs and St Albans District Council for
example has a well-developed staff mental health and wellbeing offer.
NHS Health Checks have been offered to staff in eight of the
districts/boroughs, and there is interest in Health MOTs for those not
eligible for NHS Health Checks.
6.4

District/borough sports development officers work together across the
county to promote initiatives – such as the Year of Physical Activity.
Further opportunities to consider on jointly supporting staff health and
wellbeing may emerge out of the Year of Culture 2020, and the Healthy
Hubs programme.

6.5

An options paper and business case will be developed on rolling out
the Healthy Workplace programme during 2020/21. Funding could be
for an initial development year focusing on sustainable options, with
organisations covering any recurrent programme costs from 2021/22.

7.

Equality Impact Assessment

7.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important that
they are fully aware of and have themselves rigorously considered the
equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

7.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

7.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The protected
characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age; disability; gender
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity;
race; religion and belief, sex and sexual orientation.

7.4

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been undertaken and this is
annexed at Appendix 1.

Agenda Pack Page 51

7

8.

Financial Implications

8.1

If workplace health and wellbeing programmes are sufficiently
resourced there is evidence supporting potential for return on
investment for organisations, as outlined in section 4.2.

8.2

Further resource would be needed to roll out the programme across the
county. Subject to the review noted within this report and request for
additional funding, a business case would set out options for
implementation in 2020/21.
Background Information
None

Agenda Pack Page 52

8

APPENDIX 1
Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)
1.

Who is completing the EqIA and why is it being done?

Title of service / proposal / project /
strategy / procurement you are
assessing
Names of those involved in
completing the EqIA
Head of Service or Business
Manager

Workplace Health Initiative to appoint and train Workplace Health Champions in order to decrease Mental
Health and MSK issues in the workplace.
Zac Mather
Piers Simey

Team/Department

Public Health

Lead officer contact details

Zachary.mather@hertfordshire.gov.uk / 28073

Agenda Pack Page 53

This Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out to address the obligations under the Equalities
Act 2010. The EqIA focuses on the impact of the Workplace Health Initiative project across HCC the actions
identified by this EqIA will be considered as part of the project. This project is being undertaken as Stress /
Depression / anxiety / Mental Health and Musculo-Skeletal (MSK) accounted for 21,888 days leave for
County Council employees between July 2016 and August 2017. This was at a cost of £77 per day and a
total cost of £1,639,176 to the County Council. The Workplace Health Initiative provides an opportunity for
the County Council to both reduce these numbers and ensure that it is a better, healthier place to work.
Nationally, employers pay £9 billion a year in sick pay and associated costs, plus the indirect costs including
managing the business with reduced staffing levels, resulting in a significant burden being placed on the
health and social care economies. However, a business culture of support and flexibility, healthy adaptations
to the workplace, and on-site wellbeing activities all encourage a workforce to take positive steps towards
improving their health. Evidence shows that health improvement initiatives within the workplace have
positive impacts on employee health resulting in reduced absenteeism and increased productivity which, in
longer term, will reduce the burden on health and social care economies.
By introducing Workplace Health Champions and the related training and support program to the County
Council and help reduce ill health days in other businesses across the county. If this is successful the
approach can be further rolled out.
Aims
-

To improve the overall health of County Council employees and produce a training package which
can be marketed to other business’ within Hertfordshire.
Improve opportunities for the workforce to gain knowledge of the Health initiative
Increase understanding from the line managers of the Workplace Health Champions

Service Outcomes
- Improve the working lives of County Council employees
- Improve overall physical and mental health of County Council employees
- Reduce time off with ill health
- Long term roll out as a sellable package
Other Projects
- Business in The Community Health Initiative was considered as a successful project between 2013 –
2016 but is drew to a close due to lack of funding.

Agenda Pack Page 54

Stakeholders
Who will be affected?
Which protected characteristics (see
end-notes 11-20) is it most relevant
to?
Consider the public, service users,
partners, staff, Members, etc

-

Public Health, Human Resource and Communications colleagues within the County Council
Line managers of both current and future Champion
Current Champions
HCC Communications
Public Health Specialist Trainers

2.
List of data sources used for this EqIA (include relevant national/local data, research, monitoring information, service user feedback, complaints,
audits, consultations, EqIAs from other projects or other local authorities, etc.)

Title and brief description

JSNAs on Smoking, Alcohol, Activity and Weight
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/microsites/jsna/jsnadocuments.aspx?searchInput=&page=1&resultsPerPage=10&view=card
- Although Hertfordshire consistently performs above the average for
England in terms of health and wellbeing and life expectancy indicators,
significant inequalities exist across the county. In terms of the health
behaviours that the Workplace Health offer will address:
Smoking – unemployed people have the highest smoking prevalence,
followed by those in a routine or manual job roles. Those working in a job
role classed as managerial or professional have the lowest smoking rates.
This indicates that those with the lowest incomes are the most likely to
smoke. Low income groups have been identified in the JSNA as a particular
target for public health intervention
Alcohol – data shows that young adults, black and ethnic minority ethnic
groups and females in general are less likely to engage with alcohol

Date

Jan 18

Gaps in data

treatment services in Hertfordshire than would be expected by prevalence
figures.
Activity and weight – older people are less likely to engage in physical
activity with 50% of 35 – 54-year olds and 70% of over 55-year olds doing
no physical activity at all. Levels of obesity in Hertfordshire are higher in
areas with more deprivation.
The figures above are based on figures for the population of Hertfordshire.
However, the themes are prevalent within County Council employees and
does need to be taken into account.

Agenda Pack Page 55

With rising retirement age, an increasing proportion of our workforce will
have long term health conditions whilst at work. Healthy workplace
programmes can target these issues, embedding effective prevention
approaches into the day to day life of our organisation. These programmes
benefit both employers and employees by not only increasing the reputation
of the organisation but also with a potential return of investment of between
£2 & £10 per £1 spent (https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/improvingpublics-health/helping-people-find-good-jobs-and-stay-work).

Workplace interventions which promote mental wellbeing can also reduce
costs by £495 - £5,160 per affected employee per year
(https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph22/documents/promoting-mentalwellbeing-at-work-synopsis-of-the-evidence2). Supporting employees with
mental health conditions in the workplace can also have added value in the
day to day running of the organisation and the direct learning experience.
3.

2013

Analysis and assessment: review of information, impact analysis and mitigating actions

Protected
characteristic
group

Age

2013

What do you know?

What does this mean?

This service will eventually be available for
all County Council employees over 40 as
Those employees aged 60 and over
per the NHS Health Checks. The project
are the most at risk to poorer health so
will initially target those aged 60 and over.
targeting these individuals first will
have long term positive impacts.
To be eligible for this in-house Health
People under 60 may feel let down
Check you need to be 60+ and not had a
that the service does not cater for
GP health check in the last 2 years.
them
There will be a phased roll out of these

What can you do?

As these checks are also available at local
GPs it would be recommended to these
individuals to visit there. Also roll out the
project to County Council employees under
60 over next 2 years.

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know?

What does this mean?

What can you do?

health checks to all employees over 40
over the next 2 years as it was deemed
that the employees 60+ were most at risk.

Agenda Pack Page 56

Disability

Gender
reassignment

More and more people with disabilities are
entering working environments
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/400more-disabled-people-in-work-every-day
This shows that there needs to be a
service to helps these individuals as there
are increased risks of mental health
issues.

Increased risk of mental health issues

People with disabilities are at higher
risk of mental health issues such as
depression. They can also feel
ostracised and isolated due to
deafness, blindness, wheelchair usage
or any other disability.
This may impact the individuals in a
number of different ways. For
example, they may feel excluded from
having the chance to become a
Workplace Health Champion as they
may feel that they are unable to help
and communicate others.
Alternatively, they may feel they
cannot ask for additional help from the
Champions either due accessibility or
communication issues.

Not recorded so therefore level of
need is not clearly understood

The opportunity to become a Champion will
be open to all. If necessary, the training will
be carried out with the aid of an interpreter
for deaf individuals and the training
documents will be sent around for them to
read at their leisure. Audio loops will also be
made available.
For any visually impaired people wanting to
complete the course any related documents
will be made available in large print or braille
as necessary.
Meetings will take place in rooms with
disabled access with comfort breaks
scheduled when necessary.
Information will be circulated in various ways
to ensure it is accessible to everyone.
For people who need the help of a
Champion, all the information and
communication will be provided as
necessary by the Champion themselves.
Provide a stigma free environment for these
individuals to discuss anything they require
These individuals will be able to become
Champions and undertake Make Every
Contact Count and Mental Health Training
and they will not be excluded from accessing
Champions either.

Protected
characteristic
group

Pregnancy and
maternity

Agenda Pack Page 57

Race

Religion or belief

What do you know?

Could have difficulty attending training
sessions due to appointments / leave

Black, Asian & Minority Ethnic (BAME)
households are more likely to have a
lower income. This will mean they are at
work at a much older age and be more at
risk of common health conditions such as
diabetes and high blood pressure. This
would require them to have more access
to the Health Checks.
BAME people still have a stigma around
mental health issues which could prevent
them from talking to a Workplace
Champion.

People from certain religions may not feel
comfortable discussing mental health with
anyone or feel comfortable having a
health check done by somebody who is
not their own GP.
Males are far less likely to want to discuss
their health and mental wellbeing or
become Workplace Champions.

Sex/Gender

As females are more likely to be time poor
at work they may struggle attending the
main sites and engaging with Workplace
Champions.

What does this mean?

This could lead to people not being
able to complete the training sessions
to become Champions

BAME employees may be in more
need of Health Checks under the age
of 60 which is the initial roll out age of
the checks.
The stigma around mental health may
prevent them from opening up leading
to further depression.

There may be employees who refuse
to engage with the Workplace
Champions even though it is in their
best interests to do so.

This could lead to most volunteers
being female and the male population
not wanting to discuss issues with
them or have Health Checks
completed

What can you do?

The service can provide sessions that can
be livestreamed to allow people to attend
remotely
The service can also provide regular
induction sessions and training to provide
the best chance for people to attend.
As the roll out plan is in place to ensure the
Health Checks are being completed in a
correct and timely fashion if any individuals
under the age of 60 request one they are
directed to their GP for an appointment as
they are available from 40 years of age. The
Health Checks will be rolled out to younger
employees over a 2 year period.
Workplace Champions are trained in how to
approach individuals in a stigma free, nonjudgmental way. This may help to eliminate
the stigma around talking about mental
health.
Workplace Champions are trained in how to
approach individuals in a stigma free, nonjudgmental way. This may help to eliminate
the stigma around talking about mental
health.
If they feel a Health Check is necessary, the
Champions will point in the direction of their
local GP.
In the training, really drive the importance of
this role across all genders and how
important it is to discuss mental health
issues.
Training sessions will be live streamed, so
people can view in from a remote location.

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know?

What does this mean?

What can you do?

The Trainers and Health Checks travel from
site to site across the 3 main locations on a
regular basis. This timetable is planned in
advance and available for all to see.
There should be no impact on this
characteristic

Officers will keep this under review

Officers will keep this under review

Marriage and civil
partnership

There should be no impact on this
characteristic

Officers will keep this under review

Officers will keep this under review

Carers

There should be no impact on this
characteristic

Officers will keep this under review

Officers will keep this under review

N/A

Officers will keep this under review

Officers will keep this under review

Sexual orientation

Agenda Pack Page 58

Other relevant
groups

Opportunity to advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations

Engaging with team members for MECC, discuss mental health issues or carry out a Health Check could encourage more people to come forward to
discuss issues or volunteer for Champion training therefore increasing the reach of the project.

Conclusion of your analysis and assessment - select one of the outcomes below and summarise why you have selected i, ii, iii or iv; what you think the
most important impacts are; and the key actions you will take.
OUTCOME AND NEXT STEPS
i.
-

No equality impacts identified
No major change required to proposal

SUMMARY

ii. Minimal equality impacts identified
- Adverse impacts have been identified, but have been objectively
justified (provided you do not unlawfully discriminate)
- Ensure decision makers consider the cumulative effect of how a
number of decisions impact on equality
- No major change required to proposal
iii. Potential equality impacts identified
- Take ‘mitigating action’ to change the original policy/proposal,
remove barriers or better advance equality
- Set out clear actions in the action plan in section 4.

Agenda Pack Page 59

iv. Major equality impacts identified
- The adverse effects are not justified, cannot be mitigated or show
unlawful discrimination
- You must stop and remove the policy
[you should consult with Legal Services]
- Ensure decision makers understand the equality impact

Minimal impacts to some protected characteristics have been identified.
However, the mitigations in place will objectively justify our position.
There will be no major changes to the project proposal.

4.

Prioritised Action Plan

Impact identified and group(s)
affected

Action planned
Include actions relating to:

Expected outcome

Measure of success

Lead officer and
timeframe

• mitigation measures
• getting further research
• getting further data/consultation
NB: These actions must now be transferred to service or business plans and monitored/reviewed to ensure they achieve the outcomes identified.

Agenda Pack Page 60

Pregnancy and Maternity

Investigate Skype / Scopia
availability for induction sessions
and training sessions

No individuals who are
pregnant / on Mat Leave
will feel they are unable
to attend the sessions

This EqIA has been signed off by:
Lead Equality Impact Assessment officer:

Date:

Head of Service or Business Manager:

Date:

Review date:

8

Zac Mather to
investigate before 24th
December 2018

Agenda Item No.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

6

PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2019 AT 10:00AM
PREVENTION GREEN PAPER
Report of the Director of Public Health
Author: -

Joanne Doggett, Head of Programme Delivery and
Resources (Tel: 01992 556358)

Executive Members: - Tim Hutchings, Public Health and Prevention
1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To present to Panel the recent government green paper ‘Advancing our
health: prevention in the 2020s – consultation document’ ( “the Green
Paper”). To invite the Panel to share their views on the paper to be
collated and incorporated into Hertfordshire County Council’s response
to the consultation which closes on 14th October 2019.

1.2

On 22nd July 2019 the Government published ‘Advancing our health:
prevention in the 2020s – consultation document’ setting out how it
plans to embed the principle ‘prevention is better than cure’ across
wider society. The Government has indicated that the commitments
outlined in the Green Paper and the issues raised for consultation
signal a new approach for the health and care system. The proposals
will require government, both local and national, working with the health
and care system, to put prevention at the centre of all decision-making.
The Green Paper also notes that this responsibility is shared with
individuals and local communities.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

Members are invited to give their views on the Green Paper to inform
the County Council’s response to the Consultation.

Agenda Pack Page 61

1

3.

Background

3.1

On 5th November 2018, Matt Hancock, Health Secretary set out his
‘Prevention is better than cure’ vision during a keynote speech at the
Annual Meeting of the International Association of National Public
Health Institutes.

3.2

The document containing this vision, ‘Prevention is better than cure: our
vision to help you live well longer’, builds on the government’s previous
work in areas such as childhood obesity and social prescribing. It shifts
the focus to primary and community care services and the value they
can bring in offering early support.

3.3

Prevention is at the heart of the NHS long-term plan, and aims to use
new approaches like predictive prevention, which will explore how
digital technology can be used to offer individuals precise and targeted
health advice.

3.4

The Health Secretary outlined his plans:
The Green Paper
A summary presentation of the commitments in the Green Paper is
contained at Appendix A.

3.5

The possible impact on public health of the Green Paper, written by
Public Health England’s Chief Executive, Duncan Selbie is set out
below:“‘Aiming for quality, not just quantity
The Green Paper ‘Advancing our health: prevention in the 2020s’ offers
the next opportunity to further galvanise a shift of focus from cure to
prevention.
For decades Government and the NHS have prioritised caring for us
when we are sick. This Green Paper signifies a shift from considering
how long people live as being important, to an even more important
measure being how long people live in good health.
Currently, affluent people are enjoying 19 more years in good health
than those who are poor. This is not okay and is not inevitable. And
whilst this Green Paper cannot deliver the entire 5 extra years of
healthy, independent life the Government wants to achieve by 2035,
the measures within it would make a positive difference.’

Agenda Pack Page 62

2

‘Making the healthier choice the easier choice
Obesity is one of the biggest public health challenges facing our
country – competing with tobacco for the leading cause of premature
death.
The Government is committing to further actions in the Green Paper.
This includes building upon actions within Chapters 1 and 2 of the
Childhood Obesity Plan as well as publishing a third chapter that will
aim to tackle the root causes of obesity.
The opportunity is to support families by making the healthier choice
the easier choice. This is why the reduction and reformulation work that
Public Health England oversees on behalf of Government is so critical.
The Green Paper will see this work extend further into baby food,
helping parents to make the healthy choice for their children.
A Public Health England survey published last year shows around 9 in
10 people support the work Government is doing with the food industry
to make food healthier. The commitment, leadership and creativity
already shown by some companies proves that it is possible to drive
healthier consumption while staying competitive. But there needs to be
further and quicker action from everyone. The Green Paper can help us
to achieve this.’
‘Seizing the opportunity
Prevention needs to be at the forefront of all national and local policies,
weaved into plans for everything from health and social care to town
planning, housing and transport.
Taken together with the Secretary of State’s prevention vision and the
NHS Long Term Plan, this Green Paper acknowledges prevention is
everyone’s responsibility, from the NHS to employers, schools, local
authorities and individuals.
The Green Paper makes a real commitment to helping us all to lead
healthier lives. We hope its ambition to place prevention at the heart of
all policies will be fully reflected in the spending review decisions.’
4.

Equality Impact Assessment

4.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important that
they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered the
equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

4.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this

Agenda Pack Page 63

3

requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.
4.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The protected
characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age; disability; gender
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity;
race; religion and belief, sex and sexual orientation.

4.4

An EqIA has not been completed at this stage, as the Green Paper is
purely a consultation document. Any programmes that follow will have
their own EqIAs.

5.

Financial Implications

5.1

There are not currently any financial implications, however, the position
will continue to be monitored as the proposals are progressed.

Background Information
As per hyperlinks within the report

Agenda Pack Page 64

4

APPENDIX A

Agenda Pack Page 65

Summary of Government
Green Paper
Advancing our health: prevention in the 2020s – consultation
document

Introduction
Agenda Pack Page 66

From life span to health span
Developments in public health and healthcare means people to live longer lives.
Life expectancy has increased by almost 30 years over the past century.
Cancer survival rates are up
Mortality rates from heart disease and stroke are down.
However, improvements in life expectancy are slowing and over 20% of years lived are expected to be spent in
poor health.
There is also a clear social gradient to healthy life expectancy. That is, people in deprived areas tend not only to
live shorter lives, but they also spend more of those years in poor health. For example, women living in the
10% most deprived areas can expect to live 18 fewer years in good health than those in the 10% least deprived
areas.

Female healthy life expectancy at birth and years lived in poorer states of health by
national deprivation deciles, England, 2015 to 2017

Agenda Pack Page 67

Consultation Question
Agenda Pack Page 68

Question: Which health and social care policies should be reviewed to
improve the health of people living in poorer communities or excluded
groups?
HIC response: Excluded groups could be people sleeping rough, people
leaving care, ex-offenders, and Gypsy, Traveller and Roma communities.
See section 14 on Poverty

Leading causes of years lived with disability, England, 2017

Agenda Pack Page 69

Drivers of Good Health
Agenda Pack Page 70

Factors that shape our health.
• the services we receive (Chapter 1)
• the choices we make (Chapter 2)
• the conditions in which we live (Chapter 3)
• our genes, which we inherit from our parents

Determinants of premature mortality and
their contribution
Agenda Pack Page 71

Impact of determinants on health status
Agenda Pack Page 72

Chapter 1: Opportunities

Agenda Pack Page 73

• Intelligent public health
• Predictive prevention
• Focused support and advice
• Intelligent screening
• Intelligent health checks

• Precision medicine – genomics
• Tackling current and future threats
• antimicrobial resistance
• Immunisations

Consultation Question
Agenda Pack Page 74

Question: Do you have any ideas for how the NHS Health Checks
programme could be improved?
• HIC response:
• See below re Community pharmacists role
• More systematic approach to alcohol risk screening and intervention
including training of HC staff, and clear referral pathways [though
Public Health budget cuts have had an impact on local Alcohol
services]

Chapter 2: Challenges
Evidence suggests our biggest challenges are: being smoke-free, eating
a healthy diet and staying active, and taking care of our mental health
Agenda Pack Page 75

• Being smoke-free
• Discouraging people from starting
• Supporting smokers to quit

Consultation Question
Agenda Pack Page 76

• Question: What ideas should the government consider to raise funds
for helping people stop smoking?
• HIC response: Government should look into ways of including
smoking cessation into existing service contracts so it becomes part of
business as usual within current financial envelope rather than
something bespoke. E.g. why are medicines management teams in
the hospitals not already offering NRT as part of their ward rounds.
Why not also include smoking cessation as part of the GMS contract.

Chapter 2: Challenges
• Maintaining a healthy weight
Agenda Pack Page 77

•
•
•
•
•

Eating a healthy diet
Infant feeding
Clear labelling
Improving the nutritional content of food and drink
Support for individuals to achieve and maintain a healthier weight

Consultation Questions
Agenda Pack Page 78

Question: How can we do more to support mothers to breastfeed?
HIC Response: No further comment
Question: How can we better support families with children aged 0 to 5 years to eat well?
HIC response:
• Why not have priority for making the UK/England the best place in the world to be born in (there
is a similar aspiration in the Green Paper for the elderly, and reference in the Green Paper to a
‘good start in life’)
• Reduce Child poverty see section 14
• Incentivise healthy food
• Extend sugar tax to milky drinks
• Address marketing and promotion of unhealthy foods (e.g. supermarket layouts)

Consultation Questions
Question: How else can we help people reach and stay at a healthier
weight?
Agenda Pack Page 79

HIC response:
• Embedding the MECC principles within the workforce
• Encouraging professional group uptake of ‘raise the issue of weight’
training
• Supporting the co-commissioning of services across the weight
management pathway

Chapter 2: Challenges
Agenda Pack Page 80

• Staying active

Consultation Questions
Question: Have you got examples or ideas that would help people to do
more strength and balance exercises?
Agenda Pack Page 81

HIC response: Strength and balance exercises include yoga, pilates, tai
chi…dance, or even carrying heavy shopping bags. National campaigns?

Question: Can you give any examples of any local schemes that help people
to do more strength and balance exercises?
HIC response: No

Chapter 2: Challenges
Agenda Pack Page 82

• Taking care of our mental health
Good health is much more than the absence of illness. It’s a state of wellbeing
that includes our mental as well as our physical health. Parity of esteem was
enshrined in law back in 2012.
• Tackling risk factors and strengthening protective factors
• Taking action

Consultation Questions
Question: There are many factors affecting people’s mental health. How can we support
the things that are good for mental health and prevent the things that are bad for mental
health, in addition to the mental health actions in the green paper?
Agenda Pack Page 83

HIC response:
• See Poverty section 14
• Funding / resource to support the roll out of programmes including Connect 5, and
Mental health first aid, dementia friends programmes etc.
Question: Have you got examples or ideas about using technology to prevent mental illhealth, and promote good mental health and wellbeing?
HIC response: No

Chapter 2: Challenges
Agenda Pack Page 84

• Wider factors
• Alcohol
• Drug use
• Sleep

• Prevention in the NHS
Commitments in the NHS Long Term Plan include:
• obesity – the NHS will fund a doubling of the NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme over the next 5 years, and
provide access to weight management services in primary care for people with diabetes or hypertension with
a BMI of 30 plus
• smoking – by 2023 to 2024, all people admitted to hospital who smoke will be offered NHS-funded tobacco
treatment services, including a new smoke-free pregnancy pathway for expectant mothers and their partners.
A new smoking cessation offer will also be available as part of specialist mental health and learning disability
services for long-term users
• alcohol – over the next 5 years, alcohol care teams will be fully established in those hospitals with the highest
rates of alcohol dependence-related admissions
• inequalities – the NHS will set out specific, measurable goals for narrowing inequalities, including those
relating to poverty, through the service improvements set out in the plan

Consultation Questions
Question: We recognise that sleep deprivation (not getting enough sleep) is bad for your health in
several ways. What would help people get 7 to 9 hours of sleep a night?
HIC response: National campaigns to promote this? Encouraging good sleep hygiene / reducing use
of IT before bed etc.
Agenda Pack Page 85

Question: Have you got examples or ideas for services or advice that could be delivered by
community pharmacies to promote health?
HIC response:
• Community pharmacists could have bigger role in ensuring appropriate prescribing after the NHS
Health Check to ensure the ‘effector’ arm strengthened (e.g. statin prescription for high CVD risk).
• Community pharmacists have a huge role they could play including being involved in the MECC
agenda, care home services, healthy lifestyle advice, weight management services, BP services,
Cholesterol services, sexual health services, smoking cessation services as well as their wider role
in medicine provider. Community pharmacy engagement with national/local campaigns.
• New pharmacy contract should assist with this.

Chapter 3: Strong foundations
Agenda Pack Page 86

• The early years
• The first 1,000 days of life are a critical time for brain development
• Wellbeing of their parents or primary carer
• Speech, language and communication skills

• Children’s oral health

Consultation Questions
• Question: What should the role of water companies be in water
fluoridation schemes?
Agenda Pack Page 87

• HIC response: No comment.

Chapter 3: Strong foundations
Agenda Pack Page 88

• Creating healthy places
• Workplace health – good jobs are good for health
• Long-term health conditions like musculoskeletal problems, mental ill-health,
and other conditions

• Homes, neighbourhoods and communities
• Safer communities
• Connected communities
• Homes and neighbourhoods
• Green spaces and clean air

Consultation Questions
Question: What would you like to see included in a call for evidence on musculoskeletal (MSK)
health?
Agenda Pack Page 89

HIC response: No comment.
Question: What could the government do to help people live more healthily: in homes and neighbourhoods,
when going somewhere, in workplaces, in communities?
HIC response:

• In homes and neighbourhoods national, impactive campaigns
• When going somewhere ???
• In workplaces – funding / resource / national coordination of schemes such as the health
at work charter
• In communities

Chapter 3: Strong foundations
Agenda Pack Page 90

• Active ageing
The decisions we take at midlife (around 45 years old) will have an important
bearing on our later lives. Hence, there are steps we can take – both as
individuals and as a society – to set ourselves up for longer, happier lives.
• The menopause and women’s health
• Active ageing to prevent disability and maintain independence

Consultation Question

Agenda Pack Page 91

Question: What is your priority for making England the best country in the world to grow old in,
alongside the work of PHE and national partner organisations?
•Support people with staying in work
•Support people with training to change careers in later life
•Support people with caring for a loved one
•Improve homes to meet the needs of older people
•Improve neighbourhoods to meet the needs of older people
•Other:

HIC response: The priority should be assisting people to live longer, healthier, happier,
independent lives, with more disease free years.

Chapter 3: Strong foundations
Agenda Pack Page 92

• National action
• Prevention in wider policies
• Value for money

• World-class research
• Local action
• The Wigan Deal
• ‘Our Dorset’: Prevention in an Integrated Care System
• Sexual and reproductive health

Consultation Question

Agenda Pack Page 93

Question: What government policies (outside of health and social care) do you think have the biggest impact on
people’s mental and physical health? Please describe a top 3.
HIC response:
• Whilst the harnessing of new technology (genomics, AI) is to be welcomed as part of a high risk strategy to target
prevention (personalised prognostic prevention) and building the evidence base especially for intervention, this
approach alone will be less cost effective and lead to more inequity than addressing whole population issues.
Foremost of these is tackling poverty which has myriad effects on health, some of which are recognised in the
Green Paper. The Social Metrics Commission’s 2019 report

• Link: https://li.com/reports/measuring-poverty-2019-a-report-of-the-social-metrics-commission
• has highlighted that in the UK in 2017/18 over 14 million people 22%) were in poverty. This figure is greater than
the population of Belgium with impacts including poor diet (‘food poverty’, manifest in the growing use of
foodbanks ), warmth (‘fuel poverty’) and mental health. Half of those in poverty are in persistent and often deep
poverty. One in three children in the UK live in poverty (34%, 4.6 million) and this is projected to rise by 2021/22
(Institute of Fiscal Studies). Poverty rates are highest in: lone parent families (47%); those with more than 2
children (43%); households where no one is in work (70%); ethnic minorities (45%); and in those where there is a
disabled member (48%).

• The Joseph Rowntree Foundation https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/uk-poverty-2018
• has highlighted the scale of destitution where households cannot afford basic necessities, this was estimated at
1.5 million in 2017 The key triggers pushing people in poverty into destitution include debt repayments (usually to
public authorities); benefit delays and sanctions; and high living costs of which housing costs are a key element.

Consultation Question response continued…
Agenda Pack Page 94

Question: What government policies (outside of health and social care) do you think have the biggest impact on people’s mental and physical
health? Please describe a top 3.
HIC response continued:
• There is a shortage of affordable homes, which is contributing to a crisis of homelessness. Families on typical incomes are over-dependent
on insecure and expensive private rented sector, which has more than doubled as a sector since 2001.
• (Shelter:https://england.shelter.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/1597709/2018_10_19_Shelter_briefing__Building_more_affordable_home)
• 268,000 people are homeless in England (2018), including 123,000 children; with 80,000 families in temporary accommodation. Rough
sleeping has increased and concealed homelessness ( including people who become homeless but find a temporary solution by staying with
family members or friends, living in squats or other insecure accommodation) is growing, with1.2 million households on the council house
waiting lists in 2017.
•

Central Government has a key role in addressing poverty which is largely absent from the Green Paper. Approaches to tackle these
interlinked problems include:

• Substantial revision of universal credit by DWP to ensure timely and fair system of benefits (including not penalising those with more than
2children);
• Reducing housing costs through access to affordable safe quality housing through large increases in housebuilding especially for social rent;
• Wealth distribution through more progressive taxation;
• Wider introduction of the living wage.

Consultation Questions
Question: How can we make better use of existing assets – across both the public and private sectors – to
promote the prevention agenda?
HIC response: Pooled budgets.
Agenda Pack Page 95

Question: What more can we do to help local authorities and NHS bodies work well together?
HIC response: Integration and analysis of data on wider determinants of health with health and social care
data.
Question: What are the top 3 things you’d like to see covered in a future strategy on sexual and reproductive
health?
HIC response:
• Sexual health – reduction of sexually transmitted infections across the sexually active lifecourse (especially,
reducing Chlamydia and late diagnosis of HIV).
• Reproductive health – increasing more effective access to LARC as a first choice
• Blood Borne Viruses – a strategy that recognises the role of sexual health in the transmission of BBVs.

Conclusion
Agenda Pack Page 96

• Shift from helping people live longer to keeping people healthier for
longer
• Both national and local government working more closely with the
NHS
• Prevention at the heart of decision making
• ‘5 more years of healthy, independent life by 2035 while reducing the
gap between richest and poorest’
• individuals and communities must play their part too

Consultation Question
Question: What other areas (in addition to those set out in this green paper) would you like future government policy on prevention to cover?
HIC reponse:

Agenda Pack Page 97

• Alcohol as there is very little of weight in the Green Paper, the obvious missing intervention is minimal unit pricing, information from
Scottish evaluation might help support the case. The more systematic use of NHS Health Check c mentioned above , and alcohol calorie
labelling;
• Drug misuse including opioid;
• Air pollution given greater priority as a modifiable risk that contributes to health inequity, linking it to climate change, so ‘green is healthy’;
• Need to foster a ‘culture of health’ through school and college education;
• Clarify role of social prescribing to include helping individuals deal with impact of poverty and alleviate it where possible;
• Greater focus on tackling contribution of Big corporations to unhealthy lives (Big Alcohol, Tobacco, Food and Drink, Gambling, Car/Oil);
• NHS lead the way as a healthy workplace;
• Need to transform the way society and communities are organised and structured, green/climate change agenda offers opportunity to
address transport, physical activity, processed food and drink ( carbon footprint in manufacture and transport), and energy efficiency.
• Need to increase Public Health funding for important prevention activities, for example smoking cessation especially with the Green Papers
2030 tobacco free country aspiration

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item No.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

7

PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2019 AT 10:00AM
PUBLIC HEALTH QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT – Q1 2019/20
Report of the Director of Public Health
Author: -

David Conrad, Consultant in Public Health (Evidence
& Intelligence) (Tel: 01992 555391)
Will Yuill, Public Health Analyst (Tel: 01992 555127)

Executive Member: -

Tim Hutchings, Public Health and Prevention

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

The purpose of the Report is to provide Panel members with an
overview of work being undertaken in Public Health, along with key
statistics on local service performance and public health outcomes.

2.

Summary

2.1

The report provides an overview of the work going on in the department
and presents key statistics on service performance and public health
outcomes for Hertfordshire, with contributions from a number of Public
Health officers on their specialist areas.

3.

Recommendation

3.1

Panel is asked to note and discuss the content of the Public Health
Quarterly Performance Report for Q1 2019/20 (Appendix 1).

4.

Background

4.1

The Public Health quarterly performance report has been developed by
the Public Health Evidence & Intelligence Team to provide Panel
members with an overview of work being undertaken in Public Health,
along with key statistics on local service performance and public health
outcomes.

4.2

Key messages from the Public Health Quarterly Performance Report
for Q1 2019/20 are as follows (please note that for operational reasons,
finalised service performance data is typically one quarter behind):

Agenda Pack Page 99

1

 One complaint and no compliments were received in the most
recent quarter
 The uptake of weight management services has decreased this
quarter as expected due to seasonal trends. The % completing
and achieving a 5% weight loss continues to exceed KPIs.
 The numbers entering stop smoking services remains stable and
work is ongoing to increase completion rates.
 300,349 Health Checks have been offered and 152,172
delivered since Q1 2014/15 (5 years rolling programme).
 The Beezee Families programmes are running well. Retention
rates since the service started have exceeded expectations. For
the Group I the retention rate was 85% (75% required).
 Over the last 12 months, Hertfordshire has achieved 966 out of
3464 (27.89%) successful completions of drug and alcohol
treatment which is higher than the National average of 21.08%.
 Attendance at sexual health services has not significantly
changed in Q4.
 No significant changes to STI testing in Q4, however,
Gonorrhoea diagnosis continues to increase.
 Q4 has seen an increase in number of EHC provided by
Pharmacies.
 In Q4 Public Health Nursing had delivered 64% of the target for
vision and audiology screening, on track to meet the 90% target.
5.

Equality Impact Assessment

5.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important that
they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered the
equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

5.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

5.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The protected
characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age; disability; gender
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity;
race; religion and belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Agenda Pack Page 100

2

5.4

No EqIA was undertaken in relation to this matter, as the report
presents performance monitoring data and information on existing
services only.
Background Information
None

Agenda Pack Page 101

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Health Quarterly Report –
2019/20 Q1

APPENDIX 1

Key departmental performance, outcomes and ongoing work
Key Messages
♦

One complaint and no compliments were received in the most recent quarter

♦

The uptake of weight management services has decreased this quarter as expected due to
seasonal trends. The % completing and achieving a 5% weight loss continues to exceed KPIs.
continues to be higher than KPIs.
♦
The numbers entering stop smoking services remains stable and work is ongoing to increase
completion rates.
♦
300,349 Health Checks have been offered and 152,172 delivered since Q1 2014/15 (5 years
rolling programme)
♦

The Beezee Families programmes are running well. Retention rates since the service started have
exceeded expectations. For the Group I the retention rate was 85% (75% required).
♦ Over the last 12 months, Hertfordshire has achieved 966 out of 3464 (27.89%) successful
completions of drug and alcohol treatment which is higher than the National average of 21.08%
♦

Attendance to sexual health services has not significantly changed in Q4

♦ No significant changes to STI testing in Q4, however, Gonorrhoea diagnosis continues to
increase.
♦ Q4 has seen an increase in number of EHC provided by Pharmacies.
Q4 has seen an increase in number of EHC provided by Pharmacies.
♦ In Quarter 4 Public Health Nursing had delivered 64% of the target for vision and audiology
screening, on track to meet the 90% target.

About this report
Service data is presented at the top of each page with, where available, relevant wider public health data below to
support the interpretation of service data (see iconography guide below) showing comparisons with England and
similar authorities (10 closest CIPFA statistical neighbours, ranked best/highest = 1) as well as district variation.
Beneath this is a brief summary of the service covering any major changes, developments or work being
undertaken.

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 103

1

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report
Colours
Statistically

Statistically

Not statistically

Statistically

Statistically

significant better

significant worse

significantly different

significant increase

significant decrease

Icons



Increase in value



Decrease in value



No change in value /
no trend



No data /
no update

PH1: Complaints and Compliments

One complaint and no compliments were received in the most recent quarter
Assessment

Actions

The complaint was about the Herts Warmer Homes None
scheme. This related to poor communication from
the surveyor and was passed back to the
installation company to rectify

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 104

2

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2019/20

PH3: Adult Weight Management: uptake and % achieving 5% weight loss

The uptake of weight management services has decreased this quarter as expected due to
seasonal trends. The % completing and achieving a 5% weight loss continues to exceed KPIs.
continues to be higher
than KPIs.
Assessment
Actions
The uptake of weight management services does As the existing contracts with Slimming World and
varied due to seasonal trends. There is always an Weight Watchers have come to an end. There will be
expectation of lower completer numbers in Q4 due a gap reporting as the service will move to single
provider.
to the significant increase of new service users in
January (new year) period, who would not have
completed the 12 weeks within the quarter, the
outcomes will be reflected to Q1.

Service Summary: adult health improvement (excl. tobacco control)
 Revised CQUINS and Quality Metrics are either agreed, or in the process of being agreed, with CCG
partners. These contracts require the NHS to provide information and support to promote behaviour
change (Making Every Contact Count) with patients.
 As well as supporting commissioned stop smoking services in primary care, HHIS continues to
provide a high-quality service to those requiring intensive support to stop smoking; including flexible
support for pregnant women, clients with mental health conditions and highly addicted smokers.
 Following funding from the British Heart Foundation, HHIS is working with key stakeholders to
deliver a project to identify the 30% of Hertfordshire residents who do not know that they have high
blood pressure and are at increased risk of heart attack or stroke (launched on 1.4.2019).
 The delivery of NHS Health Checks for public sector employees. This has been extremely well
evaluated by HCC colleagues and others since its launch in October 2018.
 Promoting workplace health through recruitment and training of HCC workplace health champions
 Promoting the delivery of alcohol assessment and interventions by training providers, community
pharmacies and partnership work with CGL
(Spectrum).
hertshealthevidence.org
3
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Agenda Pack Page 105

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

PH4: Smoking Cessation: uptake and successful quits

The numbers entering stop smoking services remains stable and work is ongoing to increase
completion rates.
Assessment
Actions
Hertfordshire stop smoking services annual report
was presented to Public Health and Prevention
Panel in March. It showed that a disproportionate
number of routine and manual workers, people
with mental health conditions and smokers who
live in the most deprived communities accessed
stop smoking services. Services uptake is
comparable to Q3 2017/18. However, data quality
from providers needs to be improved.

Work is continuing to ensure that the most addicted
smokers and those at greatest risk get specialist
support through targeted interventions. Work is
being developed with emerging Primary Care
Networks to support this. HHIS is working with
Lower Lea Valley PCN and is currently running 4
stop smoking clinics. Referral pathways, clinical
searches and text messaging are being promoted
with GP practices.
Work is also ongoing to improve service delivery
and data quality from our commissioned service
providers.

Service Summary: tobacco control
Hertfordshire Tobacco Control Alliance members have agreed new priorities for 2019-2022. A paper was presented to Public
Health and Prevention Panel in May 2019, recognising the key achievements and the reduction in smoking prevalence overall.
Key Priorities:
 Engagement of partner organisations to improve the health of their staff and the people they serve
 All frontline staff to deliver Making Every Contact Count (MECC)
 Reducing smoking in routine and manual workers
 Reducing smoking in mental health service users
 Reducing smoking in pregnancy
 Reducing smoking in people with long term conditions
Specialist stop smoking services delivered by Public Health’s Health Improvement Team will be prioritising the access and
support of the most addicted smokers, working in partnership with CCGs and emerging primary care networks.
An innovative smoking in pregnancy intervention developed with midwives 'Lifeline to Baby' launched in March 2019. This
tool ensures that pregnant smokers and their partners know the real risks of harm from smoking and promotes quitting
£5k and £15k funding has been received from HEE. The former has been used to develop and print MECC resources; the later
has been used to develop an interactive training resource. This is being developed in conjunction with Keele University and will
be launched during July 2019.

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 106

4

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

PH5: NHS Health Checks: invited and delivered

300,349 Health Checks have been offered and 152,172 delivered since Q1 2014/15 (5 years
rolling programme)
Assessment
Actions
Up to and including Q4 2018/19, 88% of the eligible
Maintain relationships with the LMC and GP practices
population has been offered a Health Check in the last 5 who are currently the main provider. A 5-year rolling
years, compared to 85% for England and a Public
programme began in Q1 18/19 and practices are required
Health England target of 100%. Hertfordshire’s eligible to prioritise their invitations based on a patient's risk of
population increased from 339,682 in 2017/18 to
heart attack, stroke, or other measures of need. To offer an
342,243 in 2018/19. In Q4, 8,745 individuals were
NHS Health Check to individuals who would otherwise
invited for a Health Check and 5,962 individuals
not receive one, HCC's Health Improvement Service
received one; 68% of those offered a Health Check
started delivery of Health Checks in Q3 2018/19, starting
received one compared to 47% for England in Q3 (Q4 with HCC employees and rolling out with other public
England data not yet available). There are differences in sector employees during Q4. This was agreed with the
how GP practices invite patients, and not all offers are STP CVD Prevention Board. Health Checks are in the
recorded.
process of being delivered to all district and borough
council staff and NHS hospital staff.

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Agenda Pack Page 107

5

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

PH6: Children's Healthy Weight: uptake and outcomes

The Beezee Families programmes are running well. Retention rates since the service started have
exceeded expectations. For the Group I the retention rate was 85% (75% required).
Assessment
Actions
82% of participants showed a reduction in BMI Z Programme J has just finished, with the graduation
Score from the start to the end of the programme. taking place in July 2019. Programme K will start in
This indicates that their BMI is now closer to their September. This will be the last programme on the
normal growth pattern than it was when they
current contact.
The Beezee Families programmes will continue to
started the programme.
As shown on the graph over 80% of families feel run until March 2020.
that the programme will help them to eating
healthier and to do more exercise. 100% of parents
and children rate the service as good or excellent
or excellent.

Service Summary: children and young people
The Children and Young People's team has delivered the following:
 worked with providers from the Family Centre Service to develop a promotional film about the
new service
 ensured that the Public Health Nursing Service 5-19 years (school nurses) rolled out across the
county a new online health needs assessment for reception year, year 6 and year 9. This has
been well received by pupils, families and schools.
 continued the school pastoral leads network
 led the development of a multi-agency strategy to promote mental health and wellbeing of
children and young people
 continued implementation of the Just Talk campaign (boys’ mental health) including developing
a short film.
 worked with partners to increase the number of primary schools that are delivering the Daily
Mile to over 200 schools.

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 108

6

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

PH7: Health Visitors: new birth visits (NBV) within 14 days of birth

In Q4, 2844 new birth visits were carried out within the required timescale of 14 days. Performance in this quarter was
88.2%. Over the whole year, performance average was just above the target of 90%.

Assessment

Actions

All families are offered a NBV. The % seen in
Hertfordshire within 14 days is above the national
average and we compare well in comparison to
our statistical neighbours. Some do not receive an
NBV within 14 days due to their baby remaining
in hospital at this time or due to personal
choice/circumstances. Those families who are not
seen at this time are offered a further appointment
and 98%+ of all families in Hertfordshire receive
an NBV.

• This indicator is a KPI for the Public Health
Nursing Service.
• Continue with contract monitoring for Public
Health Nursing Service to maintain performance and
identify issues early.

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Agenda Pack Page 109

7

Q1 2019/20
PH8: Successful completion of drugs & alcohol treatment - alcohol, opiate, non-opiate

Public Health Quarterly Report

Over the last 12 months, Hertfordshire has achieved 966 out of 3464 (27.89%) successful
completions of drug and alcohol treatment which is higher than the National average of 21.08%
Assessment
Actions
Individuals achieving a successful completion
outcome demonstrate significant improvements in
health and general wellbeing. Each Local
Authority has been assigned 32 revised
comparator areas (LOC’s) which are those areas
most similar to Hertfordshire in terms of
complexity of those in drug and alcohol
treatment. As of January 2019, Hertfordshire’s
position in comparison to the LOC’s performance
for successful completions and representations is
currently 10th out of 32 for opiate, 17th for alcohol
and 6th for non-opiate

In quarter 4, Hertfordshire remains slightly outside
of the top quartile range for successful completion
rates for Opiates. Hertfordshire are now also
slightly outside of the top quartile range for alcohol
but are within the top quartile ranges for non-opiate
and alcohol and non-opiate Action- To continue to
monitor successful completions rates by provider,
particularly for opiates and to develop and
implement any necessary actions to improve
performance in order to remain within top quartile
ranges.

Service Summary: health protection and resilience
 The Annual Report for Health Protection 2018-19 is now at the final draft stage.
 Work is in progress on a range of priorities for 2019/20
 We continue to work with other HCC departments and external partners to ensure preparedness for
major health protection events, such as pandemic flu and participate in exercises to test plans.
 The project to map and review health protection assurance is in progress.
 An autumn workshop is in development to explore current priorities and equality in health protection.
 We continue to participate in multi-disciplinary Incident Management Teams on environmental
hazards & poor care. We currently have two active incidents and have mobilised our contracted
providers to support the responses.
 Work continue with the new all-age drugs and alcohol treatment provider to link with TB ‘find and
treat’ pathways.

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 110

8

Q1 2019/20
PH9: Sexual Health Hertfordshire: Attendance at sexual health services (including online)

Public Health Quarterly Report

Attendance to sexual health services has not significantly changed in Q4
Assessment

Actions

The number of attendances at Sexual Health
Services has not significantly changed in Q4.

Continue to triage patients into services, directing
asymptomatic patients to on-line services when
appropriate.
Develop a short film to inform patients about on-line
testing with an aim to reduce numbers of repeat
testing (within 3 month period)

Service Summary: sexual health
We are continuing to deliver actions within the Sexual Health Improvement Plan:
 Launched on-line STI testing in February 2018.
 Clinic U – Specific clinic for LGBTQ patients in Watford and Stevenage.
 Access to Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC) available through commissioned GP
practices.
 Promotion of LARC is being prioritised especially via Pharmacies providing Emergency Hormonal
Contraception (EHC). A needs assessment of those women accessing EHC has been undertaken with a
report out in March 2019.
 Self-sampling HIV kits available on-line
 Public Health and Sexual Health Hertfordshire have completed an audit of patients diagnosed late for
HIV infection prior to attending the service.
 The Hertfordshire Grid for Learning updated to include more Sex and Relationship Education guidance
and Sexual Health information.
 Syphilis Campaign targeting men who have sex with men launched in September. Over 5000 clicks for
further information generated in first two months of the campaign.

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Agenda Pack Page 111

9

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

PH10: Sexual Health Hertfordshire (SHH): STI testing and diagnosis

No significant changes to STI testing in Q4, however, Gonorrhoea diagnosis continues to
increase.
Assessment
Actions
Gonorrhoea diagnosis continues to increase.
Chlamydia testing amongst young people 15-24
increased, however, the number of diagnoses
decreased.

Continue to provide on-line testing services. Target
sexual health promotion campaigns at those people
at higher risk of poor sexual health. Promote the
East of England 'Syphilis' campaign targeting Men
who have sex with men. Explore more targeted
Chlamydia Screening amongst higher risk young
people in order to increase diagnosis.

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 112

10

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

PH11: HIV Testing Uptake

HIV tests offered to patients has decreased in clinical based services.
Assessment

Actions

Number of HIV tests offered to patients has
Continue to offer HIV testing in all clinic-based
decreased slightly in Q4, with the number of those services. Continue to provide access to on-line HIV
accepting to be tested being similar to Q3
testing via the National Home Sampling Service.
Promote the importance of testing via community
HIV support services and social marketing
campaigns. Support development of East of England
HIV Late diagnosis strategy

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Agenda Pack Page 113

11

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

PH12: Emergency Hormonal Contraception (EHC) provided by pharmacies

Q4 has seen an increase in number of EHC provided by Pharmacies.
Assessment

Actions

Q4 has seen a slight increase in number of EHC
provided by Pharmacies.

Provide free condoms and sexual health information
in the AL10 area. Support Pharmacies to offer
greater aftercare support to those women accessing
EHC e.g. how to access local contraception services,
what contraception is available Promote sexual
health services amongst those pharmacies, where
women purchase EHC, to ensure they receive
accurate information and support.

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 114

12

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

PH13: Reception year children receiving vision and audiology screening

In Quarter 4 Public Health Nursing had delivered 64% of the target for vision and audiology
screening, on track to meet the 90% target.
Assessment
Actions
All children in mainstream schools are offered a
Delivery of vison and hearing screening for
vison and audiology screening during the reception reception year is a KPI for the Public Health
year. Those children who are not seen during the Nursing Service. Continue with contract monitoring
autumn term are offered a further appointment later to maintain performance and identify issues early.
in the school year. Children that need further
follow up are referred to specialist Ophthalmology
and/or Audiology services.

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Agenda Pack Page 115

13

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

Service Summary: commissioning
 Public Health is currently engaging with the provider of Sexual Health Hertfordshire, Central London
Community Healthcare NHS Trust. The provider has been asked to identify significant savings. Dependent
on the proposals received, Public Health may take a decision not to extend the current contract beyond its
natural expiry date of March 2020, and may instead go out to tender for a newly specified service.
 Following discussions with the provider of the Warmer Homes Project, Public Health is bringing in-house
the co-ordination of the project. This will involve letting contracts for energy efficient interventions to be
installed in the homes of vulnerable adults across the county. Supported by funding from major energy
suppliers and supplemented by funds from district and borough councils, Public Health will be directly
awarding a contract for this provision, whilst we undertake a competitive process to establish a framework
of installers.
 We are developing new contracts for delivery of Public Health interventions by GPs and community
pharmacies. Current contracts with GPs will expire in March 2019, and new contracts will be developed in
collaboration with the LMC and LPC which act as umbrella organisations for these providers, before
sending contracts to individual practices and pharmacies


Service Summary: CCG support
Public Health input to the Beds, Herts, West Essex and Milton Keynes Priorities Forum – attending meetings
and contributing to policy development
 Support to the CCG in regards to implementation of policies from the Priorities Forum
 Public Health support to CCGs in responding to Enquiries, Complaints and FOIs
 Attendance and participation in various committees (Commissioning Executive, Quality Committee)
 Involvement in CCG policy development where PH input required
 Work to support NHS service commissioning, decommissioning, redesign of pathways
 Conducting audits within Trusts/service providers on behalf of the CCG
 Evidence and intelligence support to Individual Funding Requests
 Ad hoc advice re various issues of a public health nature

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 116

14

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

Service Summary: delivery and resources
Priorities for this quarter have been:






Integrated Planning budget updates
HCC integrated working – building health considerations into the work of other departments
ACS/PH Collaboration – work to identify shared priorities and joint working opportunities
Input into ACS Learning Disabilities Partnership Board
HAFLS Joint Working – learning opportunities for vulnerable people such as ‘how to cook a healthy
meal’

Partnership Working (external partners)
 District Partnership. Completion of Phase 3 projects and roll out of ‘Healthy Hubs’ over next 2 years
 Facilitation of the University of Hertfordshire masterclasses, liaison group and website
Management of Prevention related projects:
 Dog Therapy Projects - Hertfordshire Leading The Way
 Employment – a review of how Hertfordshire County Council supports people to be employment ready
 Social Prescribing Social Marketing – a campaign to encourage health professionals to signpost people
to community activities as an alternative to medication
 Behavioural Science web pages & toolkit – development of a psychological tool kit to help staff at
HCC produce effective and impactful communications
 SMART Staff Volunteering – a programme to encourage staff to do voluntary work which supports
staff well-being
Project Management of the following:
 Herts warmer homes
 Child weight management trailblazer
 NHS Health Checks
 Child Weight Management
 Just Talk Campaign
 Suicide prevention
 Adult Weight Management Service

Emergency Hormonal Contraception questionnaire
 LARC prescription savings
 Sexual Health project plan (to underpin the new strategy)
 Re modelling the sexual health service
 Workplace health

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Agenda Pack Page 117

15

Q1 2019/20

Public Health Quarterly Report

Service Summary: evidence and intelligence
 An Assistant Public Health Analyst, part-funded by YC Herts, is now in post working on the Hertfordshire
Young People’s Health Survey and analysis of school health data.
 Work is ongoing on a number of evaluations, including the Sport England-funded Active Ageing project;
the Public Health Partnership Fund (District Offer), Hertfordshire’s social prescribing initiative and an ACS
assistive technology pilot.
 Work is underway on a number of Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) reports, including: Looked
after Children, Learning Disabilities, Cancer, and Mental Health & Wellbeing.
 JSNA Briefings looking at key health challenges in the county and the housing support needs of those who
are, or at risk of becoming, homeless are underway.
 Work is ongoing to shape the role of PH intelligence in the Integrated Care System.
 A workshop was held with the County Community Safety Unit to kickstart a joint piece of JSNA work
pertaining to the needs of those whose drinking places them at higher risk of harm but who don’t meet the
criteria for existing alcohol treatment services.
 ACS have funded the team to provide additional hours of specialist advice and support around evaluation.
This work is underway and the future of this provision is being discussed.
 Planning is underway to provide evaluation support for the forthcoming Behaviour Change Unit.
 Planning work is underway for a new CCG localities health needs report.
 Intelligence work is underway to support the refresh of the STP strategy.

Service Summary: prevention, training & healthcare




A STP Population Health Management (PHM) Workstream has been established with Prof Jim McManus
as SRO. The aim of the workstream is ‘to enable decisions about care delivery for our individuals and
populations that are based on evidence and outcomes the PHM programme will implement the
infrastructure and intelligence to provide a single collection point and source of information.’ The
workstream has agreed four work programmes each led by CCG/NHS leaders to deliver a work programme
aligned to the aim and vision of the programme. The sub groups are focussed on the following areas:
o Vison mission and approach
o PHM Data Recording & Extraction
o Data warehouse
o Analytical Capacity and Capability
Hertfordshire continues to be a recognised training location for the East of England Public Health Training
Programme. There are currently five registrars based in the team, and two are undertaking full time study
for a Master’s in Public Health. The registrars support a range of projects, e.g. contributing to JSNA,
clinical policies for CCGs and supporting various projects.

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 118

16

Agenda Item
No:

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

8

PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2019 AT 10:00AM
BROXBOURNE AIR QUALITY PROJECT UPDATE REPORT
Report of the Director of Environment and Infrastructure
Author: -

Trevor Brennan, Strategy & Programme Manager,
East Herts & Broxbourne (Tel: 01992 658406)

Executive Member/s: - Phil Bibby, Highways and Environment
Local Member/s: -

Paul Mason, Hoddesdon South

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To inform Members of the development of the Broxbourne Air Quality
Project and agree the establishment of a Hertfordshire County Council
/ Borough of Broxbourne joint Members Engagement Group.

2.

Summary

2.1

A Ministerial Directive was issued in October 2018 to Broxbourne
Borough Council (BoB) regarding air quality on the southern section of
the A10. As a consequence Hertfordshire County Council and BoB
were required to develop targeted measures which could bring
compliance with air quality standards forward in the shortest possible
time. Whilst a series of possible options to address air quality along
this section of the A10 were identified, the Department for
Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (Defra’s) Joint Air Quality Unit
(JAQU) have recently advised that they consider the implementation of
a Clean Air Zone to be the only realistic option.

3.

Recommendations

3.1

A report on this item of business will be considered by the Highways &
Environment Cabinet Panel on 11 September 2019, is to be noted at
the Public Health & Prevention Cabinet on 18 September 2019 and
considered at Cabinet on 23 September 2019.

Agenda Pack Page 119

1

3.2

The Highways & Environment Cabinet Panel will be invited to
recommend to Cabinet: “That Cabinet approves the establishment of a Hertfordshire County
Council and Broxbourne Borough Council Joint Members Engagement
Group for the Broxbourne Air Quality Project as set out in the report;
the Group to report back to the Highways & Environment Cabinet
Panel and Cabinet on progress as appropriate.”

4.

Background

4.1

Following R (ClientEarth No.3) v Secretary of State for
Environment, Food & Rural Affairs, Garnham J, on the 21February
2018 judgment, the High Court required the Government to take a
direct legal approach with those local authorities responsible for air
quality issues relating to roads were there was an exceedance of
annual mean EU Limit of 40 ug/m3 (Micrograms per Cubic Meter of Air)
for Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2). The southern part of the A10 in the
Borough of Broxbourne, was identified as part of this process, and BoB
was issued with a ministerial direction on 22 March 2018 requiring
them to carry out further work to consider actions that could bring
forward compliance dates. BoB is therefore legally required to
undertake actions to address this exceedance in the shortest time
possible. Hertfordshire County Council’s legal obligation is as a result
of being highway authority and therefore it has a legal requirement to
work proactively with BoB to address the air quality exceedance.

4.2

As a consequence of ministerial direction, Broxbourne has carried out
a detailed study of the A10 road link in question (see Map 1, below),
using local modelling data, which gives a much more granular,
representative picture of air quality on the road. This Targeted
Feasibility Study was submitted to the Government on 31 July 2018, as
required by the ministerial direction.
Map 1: Location of Air Quality area in exceedance of annual mean EU
Limit of 40 ug/m3 for NO2.
PCM (The Pollution
Climate Mapping)
national model
identified a stretch
of the A10, from its
junction with B198
to the slip road
leading towards the
A1170/B156
roundabout, to be
exceeding the EU
Limit Value of
40μg/m3 for NO2
Actual value was 76
μg/m3 for NO2

Brookfield

Church Ln
1.82km
2

Agenda Pack Page 120
College Rd

4.2

The study identified a much more significant problem, projecting that
this stretch of A10 will see emissions that exceed the legal limit until
2028, assuming no further action is taken other than the projected
switch to electric vehicle fleets. This was deemed unacceptable by
Government and therefore the priority has been to identify options
which will address the air quality issues in the shortest time possible.

4.4

On the 5 October 2018, BoB was issued with a further ministerial
direction requiring it to carry out a more detailed study to identify the
most suitable measures to address the exceedance in the shortest
time possible. The deadlines for that work included an initial plan by
31January 2019 (achieved) Outline Business Case (OBC) by 31
October 2019 and a Final Business Case (FBC) by March 2020.

4.5

The Department for Transport (DfT) and Defra have established a Joint
Air Quality Unit (JAQU), with officials from the two Departments
working together. The JAQU is continuing to provide funding of the
study. A technical working group was set up with BoB and supporting
consultants to identify potential measures to bring forward compliance
and develop the required business cases.

5.

Outline Business Case

5.1

The outputs from the Targeted Feasibility Study concluded that the
pollution was far worse than originally modelled. A key finding was that
the ability to meet air quality compliance with the legal limit would not
be achieved before 2028 by the implementation of the measures
outlined in the Broxbourne Transport Strategy (which include
improvements to sustainable transport and A10 junction
improvements) plus speed limit reductions alone(Option A). Instead it
identified that the most viable solution in terms of achieving compliance
in the shortest time possible would be to implement some form of
charging. Initial work looked at the potential for implementing a toll for
through traffic on the A10, but Hertfordshire County Council and BoB
officers have since been directed by JAQU that a Charging Clean Air
Zone (CAZ) is the only realistic option to achieve compliance as quickly
as possible (Option B). See Appendix 1, for further details on Options
A & B.

Agenda Pack Page 121

3

5.2

Any potential CAZ will mean that a zone within and around the section
of the A10 will be created where all commercial and domestic vehicles,
other than motorbikes which are not Euro 4 Petrol (i.e. registered
before 2005) and Euro 6 Diesel compliant (i.e. registered prior to 2015
/2016 depending on the model) will be charged to enter the zone. The
CAZ will involve:
1.

A CAZ Signing Strategy will implement a new signing network
which will notify drivers on the approach to the zone that a CAZ
is in operation, providing information of the charges which are
being enforced. ‘Countdown’ signs will be installed on all
approaches to the CAZ, providing drivers with advance
information for drivers on how to check if their vehicles comply
and the charges for non-compliant vehicles.

2.

A network of Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR)
cameras will need to be installed at the intersections where
approach roads meet the CAZ boundary, both on the incoming
and outgoing roads. This camera network will provide the tool
for enforcement of the CAZ, capturing images of the number
plates of every vehicle which enters and leaves.

3.

A ‘back office’ administration system with software to check the
number plates against a list of compliant vehicles. The system
will also identify those vehicles which are not exempt, check
these against payment records and administer fines for nonpayment. Hertfordshire County Council and BoB Officers have
been informed by JAQU that they are setting up a centralised
system to administer CAZ charges.

5.3

It is anticipated that the implementation of a CAZ will contribute
towards improved air quality, promoting a significant behavioural shift,
with many drivers opting for an alternative, more eco-friendly method of
transport or vehicle.

5.4

These initial options are now subject to a more detailed study of the air
quality, economic, capital/revenue costs and network management
impacts. The outcomes off these will be subject to review and
evaluation by JAQU over the next four months and will be included as
part of the submission of the OBC scheduled for the 31 October 2019.

5.5

The OBC will include an estimate of the capital/revenue costs for the
implementation of the recommended option. This will require some
engagement with the market to provide indicative costings and a
timeline for the installation of the ANPR equipment and any non
centralised ‘back office’ administration functions. If the OBC is judged
to satisfy the criteria outlined in the ministerial directive, funding will be
approved for the final stage of preparing the Full Business Case (FBC);
this stage will also include a full public consultation exercise and
procurement.

Agenda Pack Page 122

4

6.

Governance

6.1

To deliver the project there is a need to focus resources from both BoB
and Hertfordshire County Council to ensure the project objectives and
timelines are achieved. This is a complex project with many
stakeholder groups and several organisations providing expertise and
guidance. A joint workshop was held with JAQU and HCC and BoB
were advised on best practice for proceeding with governance. As a
result of these discussions , it is proposed to establish the following
Governance structure:

6.3

1.

Programme Board (Responsibility for the delivery of the
project)

2.

Members Engagement Group (Membership of portfolio holders
and councillors who have a direct interest in the scheme)

3.

Air Quality Board (Joint working group between the two
councils to coordinate resources to produce the OBC/FBC)

4.

Technical Group (Delivery of the economic and air quality
analysis of the proposed scheme scenarios and development of
the business cases)

5.

JAQU Steering Group (Liaison with DEFRA to monitor
progress on the BoB compliance with the Ministerial Directive)

The overall proposed Governance structure is the following diagram:

Agenda Pack Page 123

5

6.4

The Technical Group and JAQU Steering Group are already in place, it
is intended to implement the remaining governance structure with
immediate effect.

6.5

The proposal for a joint members engagement group was agreed by
BoB at an informal cabinet briefing on the 15th July and at a members
briefing on 29 th July 2019.

7.

Public Consultation

7.1

Subject to the submission and approval of the OBC, a full public
consultation on the proposed adopted option, will be undertaken as
part of the FBC. It is anticipated this will occur in late 2019.

8.

The Policy Context and Legal Framework

8.1

The Borough of Broxbourne has the legal responsibility for air quality
issues (EA Act 1995) in the BoB, however, Hertfordshire County
Council as Highways Authority is likely to be responsible for
implementation of any options, via ministerial decree or request.

8.2

Any implementation of a CAZ option will be likely under Section 163 et
seq, Part III of the Transport Act 2000 which governs “charging
schemes”. Hertfordshire County Council’s Legal Team’s initial advice is
set out below:

Agenda Pack Page 124

6

I.

The Borough of Broxbourne (“BoB”) was issued a Direction by
the Secretary of State (“SoS”) on 5 October 2018 requiring BoB
to deliver a plan to identify how to bring forward compliance with
air quality regulations. The Directive requires that an initial plan
must be submitted by 31 January 2019 and a final plan by 31
October 2019. BoB has acknowledged the Direction, and
although it is not the highways authority, has confirmed that it
will work alongside relevant partners, including Hertfordshire
County Council as highway authority for Hertfordshire, to
develop a plan to be submitted before the deadline in 2019.

II.

The Air Quality (England) Regulations 2015 set air quality
objective levels for three main pollutants including nitrogen
dioxide, PM10 and sulphur dioxide. Local authorities have a
duty to review the air quality in their district under the
Environment Act 1995, as poor air quality has the potential to
adversely affect public health. The BoB is required under this
law to carry out regular reviews and assessments of air quality in
Broxbourne against standards and objectives set out by the
National Air Quality Strategy. Where exceedances are
considered likely, the local authority must declare an Air Quality
Management Area (AQMA) and prepare an Air Quality Action
Plan (AQAP) setting out the measures it intends to put in place
to facilitate compliance with these objectives and the priority, in
putting together a AQAP, must be to identify options which will
address the air quality issues as quickly as possible.

III.

Whilst local authorities are not obliged to meet the objectives,
they must show that they are working towards them. Where the
AQMA designation arises primarily as a result of transport
pollution, local authorities in England have the freedom to
integrate their action plans into their Local Transport Plans
(LTPs). In such cases, the Government will no longer require the
production of a separate action plan.

IV.

The primary legislation in respect of air quality is set out in the
Environment Act 1995, in sections 41 and 42 in particular.
Additionally, air quality objectives are set out in the Air Quality
(England) Regulations 2000, as amended by the Air Quality
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2002, and these provide
the statutory basis for the air quality objectives under Local Air
Quality Management (LAQM) in England.

V.

S.82 Environment Act 1995 provides that every local authority
shall review the air quality within its area, both at the present
time and the likely future air quality.

VI.

S.83 Environment Act 1995 requires local authorities to
designate an AQMA where air quality objectives are not being

Agenda Pack Page 125

7

achieved, or are not likely to be achieved, as set out in the Air
Quality (England) Regulations 2000.

9.

VII.

Once an AQMA has been designated, S.84 Environment Act
1995 requires the local authority to develop an AQAP detailing
remedial measures to tackle the problem within the AQMA.

VIII.

There are obligations on both district and county councils within
Part IV Environment Act 1995. In summary, the SoS expects
district and county councils to work together to develop their
content and to ensure that all necessary measures to address
air pollution in their local area are included in the AQAPs.

IX.

County councils have a number of obligations under LAQM (set
out below) and, in practice, county councils must proactively
engage with the relevant district council, in this case BoB, as
soon as an air quality issue is identified.

X.

Where a district council is preparing an AQAP, county councils
are obliged, under S.86(3) Environment Act 1995 to submit
measures related to their functions (in this case as highway
authority) to help meet air quality objectives in their local area.
These measures will be for inclusion in the AQAP being
developed (or Plans that undergo revisions) and should include
the timetable for implementation of measures to be adopted.

XI.

Under paragraph 3.1 Air Quality (England) Regulations 2000,
submission of these county council proposals should take place
within 9 months of first being consulted on the AQAP by the
district council. Earlier responses from county councils are
encouraged in order not to delay the completion of the Action
Planning process.

XII.

County councils are a consultee to AQAPs and under S.86(2)
Environment Act 1995 the county council may make
recommendations to the district council in relation to any review
and assessment of air quality or development or amendment of
AQAPs in the local authority area.

XIII.

Under S.84(5) Environment Act 1995 where there is
disagreement between the county council and the district council
in relation to the content of an AQAP, either the district or the
county council can refer the issue to the SoS for Environment
Food and Rural Affairs. The SoS may choose to accept or
reject the disputed AQAP (with or without modifications) and it
may not be finalised until a decision from the SoS has been
made.

Financial implications

Agenda Pack Page 126

8

9.1

The study and subsequent scheme are to be fully funded by JAQU, via
a capital grant to BoB.

9.2

This grant will likely be unconditional and will be for the total cost of the
scheme. It is not anticipated that there will be any capital funding
implications for Hertfordshire County Council or BoB for the
implementation of the scheme.

9.3

The capital funding from Government is likely to be divided into two
funding streams (1) the Implementation Fund and (2) the Clean Air
Fund.

9.4

The Implementation Fund will provide funding to implement the
physical scheme, i.e. a possible CAZ signing and Automatic Number
Plate Recognition (ANPR) camera networks and the ‘back office’
administration system. The Clean Air Fund will provide the funds
required to implement a package of mitigation measures to alleviate
the impact of the scheme; these measures are proposed to be
implemented by the Hertfordshire County Council and BoB to mitigate
the impact to the most significantly affected socio-economic groups,
because of the implementation of the proposed options.

9.5

A number of highways assets will likely be introduced as a result of the
implementation of the any proposed CAZ scheme. As such revenue
expenditure will be required for the maintenance of these assets,
together with ongoing operational costs. A revenue income will be
generated by the toll payments and any income will first be used to
cover the costs of running the CAZ. The Transport Act 2000 requires
any excess revenue that may arise to be re-invested to facilitate the
achievement of local transport policies: the money would be invested in
transport infrastructure measures to benefit the public and improve air
quality, within the area.

10.

Equality Impact Assessments (EqIAs)

10.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important
that they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered
the equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

10.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure the proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

10.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to:

Agenda Pack Page 127

9

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other
conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant,
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
10.4

The protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age;
disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion and belief, sex and sexual
orientation.

10.5

There are potential equality impacts identified arising because of this
report. A full EqIA, has been undertaken and agreed with Hertfordshire
County Council Equalities Team, a summary statement is set out
below and attached as Appendix 2.
“The proposed package of mitigation measures (exemptions,
discounts, sunset periods, financial incentives to support business and
enhanced infrastructure to support transition to compliant modes of
transport) is intended to reduce the impacts of the CAZ on these
groups (age, disability, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, income deprived, those accessing community and taxi based
transport) that have been assessed as being impacted upon”
Background Information
 https://airqualitynews.com/2018/10/05/ministers-issue-directionfor-next-steps-in-no2-plan/
 Defra Ministerial Directive Environment Act 1995 (Appendix 3 to
the report)

Agenda Pack Page 128

10

APPENDIX 1

Agenda Pack Page 129

Appendix 1: Option A (Highway)
and Option B (CAZ D)

1

Option A: Broxbourne Highway Option
Option

VMS signs on A10 warning of congestion - promotion of parallel corridors if required

44

Speed limit reduction on A10 from Hertford to M25 (permanent or smart/dynamic)

52

Use of signals to gate traffic away from the critical section of the A10

48

College Road: At grade improvement at College Road / A10 junction, providing additional northbound and southbound lanes at
the junction and increased length of northbound left filter into College Road, and banning all right turns (see Appendix C).

49

Church Lane: At grade highway capacity improvement at Church Lane / A10 junction, providing an additional north-south lane
through the junction and banning all right turns and left turns onto the A10 (see Appendix C).

Agenda Pack Page 130

41

58
71
63
70

Employer-based / school / personal travel plans to encourage active travel. Promote shift patterns and staggered employee
office hours
Behaviour change campaigns to reduce single occupancy car trips
Car Club / Car Sharing Schemes/ Car Pooling
Provision of high quality, bespoke and accessible information on sustainable travel, e.g. on a dedicated travel website with
route/mode options

32

City link shuttle service to key towns, e.g. various proposals from the Broxbourne Transport Strategy (High Leigh,
Brookfield/Cheshunt Lakeside, Park Plaza enhancements), Broxbourne borough – Enfield cross-boundary services; extending
one or more TfL services to Park Plaza; extending the Brookfield service down into Enfield.

35

Introduce a zero emissions bus route, connecting Enfield Town and Hoddesdon, via the A10

36
37
70

"Public transport infrastructure improvements, e.g. - Enhanced bus shelters - Accurate electronic timetables - m-tickets /
contactless payment options"
"Incentivise public transport usage, e.g. - Provision of information about existing services - Campaigns - Season ticket
loan/discounts - Subsidised tickets"
Provision of high quality, bespoke and accessible information on sustainable travel, e.g. on a dedicated travel website with
route/mode options
2

Option B:CAZ D Parameters
Scheme Definition Parameter

Proposed Scheme Definition

Who will be charged?

All non compliant vehicles not meeting CAZ D standard

(See Potential Exclusions to the CAZ D Charging on slide 4)

All non compliant vehicles not meeting CAZ D standard

How would the charge operate – by
frequency of trip or daily?

One charge per day proposed (similar to London Congestion/ULEZ Charge)

What hours will the charge operate?

24 hours a day

Will the charge be solely for weekdays or
include weekend?

As the A10 forms an important route at all times of day it is proposed to operate 7
days a week

Which vehicle classes will be charged

All – see exceptions above (plus bicycles exempt)

Cost of charge

£10

Agenda Pack Page 131

Would Euro-compliant vehicles making a
through trip be charged?

3

Option B: Potential Exclusions to CAZ D Charging
Exclusions to the CAZ D Charging

Agenda Pack Page 132

Residents will have to apply on line and have their applications validated. There is
All Broxbourne Residences i.e. Vehicles registered a possibility the qualifying criteria may need to revised if air quality target levels
to residents within the Council area know as the are not achieved within the forecast timeline. Public Consultation needs to include
Borough of Broxbourne
a caveat that the scheme maybe subject change based on the delivery of public
health objectives.
Broxbourne Business Vehicles

Exemption for Local business based in Broxbourne.

Buses / Coaches

Exemption for some Bus Groups e.g. - Local School buses can be Euro 3 and above
but larger companies such as Aviva have to be Euro 6 or above.

Social Care/NHS

Potential exemption for certain categories of workers within the Health Care and
Social Care sectors. There is currently 22 care homes (need to define what a care
home is defined as)

Blue badge holders

Only those with modified vehicles registered with the DVLA will be exempt

Community based transport

Inclusion of Section 19 vehicles registered with Herts County

SEN, Mental health and Physical Disability
Groups outside the Broxbourne area accessing
treatment facilitates etc.

Case by case basis for exemption

Diversions

Expect to suspend charges if road closures for people to go into the CAZ zone.

Motorcycles and Mopeds
Electrical Vehicles

All such vehicles will be exempt.
Exempt

Public Sector Workers e.g. Teachers

Potential exemption for Public Sector workers
4

Option B: Broxbourne Clean Air Zone (CAZ D)

Agenda Pack Page 133
5

This page is intentionally left blank

Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)
1.

APPENDIX 2

Who is completing the EqIA and why is it being done?

Title of service / proposal / project / strategy /
procurement you are assessing

Broxbourne Air Quality Project

Names of those involved in completing the EqIA

Trevor Brennan

Head of Service or Business Manager

Rupert Thacker/Sue Jackson
Environment and Infrastructure (Highways Strategy - East Herts & Broxbourne
group)
Trevor Brennan
Strategy & Programme Manager
Environment and Infrastructure
Hertfordshire County Council, County Hall, Pegs Lane, Hertford, SG13 8DN
t: 01992 658406 Comnet/Internal : 58406 m:07484647546
email: trevor.brennan@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Following R (ClientEarth No.3) v Secretary of State for Environment, Food &
Rural Affairs, Garnham J, on the 21st February 2018 judgment, the High Court
required the Government to take a direct legal approach with those local
authorities responsible for air quality issues relating to roads (such as the A10)
were there was an exceedance of annual mean EU Limit of 40 ug/m3
(Micrograms per Cubic Meter of Air) for Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2). The Borough
of Broxbourne (BOB), was identified as part of this process, and is therefore
legally required to undertake actions to address this exceedance in the shortest
time possible.

Team/Department

Agenda Pack Page 135

Lead officer contact details

Focus of EqIA – what are you assessing?

The key finding of work to date by BOB was that the ability to achieve
compliance in order to meet the air quality legal limit would not be achieved
before 2028, by the implementation of highway measures alone but rather it
identified that the most viable solution in terms of achieving compliance in the
shortest time possible, would be the implementation of a Charging Clean Air
Zone (CAZ) for a section of 1.82km of the A10 from Brookfield slip Road
towards Church Lane and ending at College Road. This EqIA is therefore
1

focused on an Air Quality Project for Broxbourne, this will mean that an zone
within and around the section of the A10 will be created where all commercial
and domestic vehicles, other than motorbikes which are not Euro 4 Petrol and
Euro 6 Diesel compliant will be charged to enter the zone.
The Charging Clean Air Zone (CAZ) will involve CAZ Signing Strategy,
Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) camera, IT and ‘back office’
facilities.

Agenda Pack Page 136

The CAZ Signing Strategy will implement a new signing network which will
notify drivers on the approach to the zone that a CAZ is in operation, providing
information of the charges which are being enforced. ‘Countdown’ signs will be
installed on all approaches to the section of the A10, providing drivers with
advance warning, information informing how drivers check if their vehicles
comply; the charges non-compliment vehicles will be fined.
The ANPR project will involve the installation of a network of ANPR cameras at
the intersections where approach roads meet the CAZ boundary, both on the
incoming and outgoing roads. This camera network will provide the tool for
enforcement of the CAZ, capturing images of the number plates of every
vehicle which enters and leaves.
The ‘back office’ will enable software to check the number plates against a list
of compliant vehicles and those which have paid the charge; identifying those
vehicles which are not exempt and issuing the owner with a fine.
The implementation of a CAZ will likely contribute towards improved air quality,
promoting a significant behavioural shift, with many drivers opting for an
alternative, more eco-friendly method of transport.
A full public consultation on the proposed CAZ options will be undertaken in the
final quarter of 2019.

Stakeholders

The overall CAZ scheme impacts directly protected characteristics who will
need to enter the zone in that they may be required to pay if they have a noncompliant vehicle.
However the introduction of the CAZ and the subsequent improvements to air
quality will provide a betterment for the public good, including the groups with
2

protected characteristics.

2.
List of data sources used for this EqIA (include relevant national/local data, research, monitoring information,
service user feedback, complaints, audits, consultations, EqIAs from other projects or other local authorities, etc.)
A range of useful local data on our communities can be found on Herts Insight and on the Equalities Hub

Agenda Pack Page 137

Title and brief description
(of data, research or engagement – include hyperlinks if available)

Date

Gaps in data

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/microsites/hertsinsight/home.aspx
07/08/2019

Income Deprivation for lower super output areas with the CAZ area
have been considered and mapped.

3

3.

Analysis and assessment: review of information, impact analysis and mitigating actions

Protected
characteristic
group

Agenda Pack Page 138

Age

Disability

What do you know?
What do people tell you?

What does this mean – what are the
potential impacts of the
proposal(s)?

Are more vulnerable to air pollution,
concerns over the personal security
and would be more sensitive to any
changes in pedestrian access.

Children, young people and
the elderly.

Blue Badge holders

Children would be adversely affected
by any reduction in community
transport servicing school and
community centres within the CAZ.
A high proportion of elderly people
have limited mobility and therefore
would be adversely affected by
implementation of the CAZ through the
potential reduction in the availability of
community transport and taxis, and
also the potential increase in the costs
of community transport and private
vehicle travel

Vehicles used by Blue Badge holders
must meet the CAZ emission
standards.

What can you do?

All facilities of importance within the air quality
area for the CAZ would experience a
decrease in NO2 concentrations to some
degree.
The proposed package of mitigation
measures (exemptions, discounts, sunset
periods, financial incentives to support
business and enhanced infrastructure to
support transition to compliant modes of
transport) is intended to reduce the impacts of
the CAZ on these groups.
HCC/BOB Comms Team are currently
developing a consultation and communication
plan for the implementation of a CAZ. The
consultation will take place for 6 weeks from
the 1 Nov 2019, involving press and news
releases supported by presentations and drop
in opportunities for business, community and
residents within Broxbourne.
Vehicles which are registered with the DVLA
with a ‘disabled’ or ‘disabled passenger
vehicle’ tax class, will be exempt.
If a vehicle does not meet these conditions
and wants to enter the CAZ a charge must be
paid. Support will be offered to low income
groups to help to adapt to the CAZ.

4

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know?
What do people tell you?

Gender
reassignment

It is not considered that the
CAZ is likely to have
disadvantage to this group.

Pregnancy and
maternity

There are health inequalities
associated with pregnancy
and air quality.

Agenda Pack Page 139

Race

The higher percentage of
Black, Asian and Minority
Ethnic (BAME) population as
part of the taxi trade.

Religion or
belief

Registered places of worship
within the CAZ.

Sex/Gender

It is not considered that the
CAZ is likely to have
disadvantage to this group.

Sexual
orientation

It is not considered that the
CAZ is likely to have
disadvantage to this group.

What does this mean – what are the
potential impacts of the
proposal(s)?

There is emerging evidence on the
links between high levels of emissions
and the effects on the unborn child.

The impact on the taxi trade could
have a consequential impacts on the
BAME and low income communities ,
since a higher proportion of taxi drivers
are from communities with a high
proportion of non-white residents and
income deprived residents

What can you do?

The introduction of the CAZ will have positive
outcomes for this group.
Taxis will be targeted in terms of supporting
mitigation measures due to the combination
of direct and indirect impacts arising from the
proposed CAZ.
This will involve direct financial support in
terms of exemptions, discounts, sunset
periods, financial incentives to support taxi’s
and enhanced infrastructure such as EV
charging infrastructure.
Consideration for exemptions, discounts,
sunset periods for those wanting to attend
places of worship within the CAZ will be
considered on a case by case basis.

5

Protected
characteristic
group

Marriage and
civil partnership

What do you know?
What do people tell you?

What does this mean – what are the
potential impacts of the
proposal(s)?

What can you do?

It is not considered that the
CAZ is likely to have
disadvantage to this group.

Carers

Agenda Pack Page 140

Other relevant
groups

Consider if there is
a potential impact
(positive or
negative) on areas
such as health and
wellbeing, crime
and disorder,
Armed Forces
community.

Other relevant
groups

Income deprivation has been
considered at lower super
output level (LSOA) 1 relative
to England and wales, and
Hertfordshire.

There are higher levels of income
deprivation within the CAZ. Owners of
non-compliant vehicles resident within
the CAZ are potentially the worst
affected finically by the proposed
scheme, as due to their geographical
location they would be least able to
avoid entering and existing the CAZ for
everyday car journeys.

Those dependent on
community transport and
taxis.

Without mitigation these forms of
transport could be adversely affected
to the extent that their availability
decreases. People vulnerable to these
impacts would include the disabled, the
elderly, women and children.

All Broxbourne Residences i.e. Vehicles
registered to residents within the Council area
known as the Borough of Broxbourne.
Residents will have to apply on line and have
their applications validated. There is a
possibility the qualifying criteria may need to
revised if air quality target levels are not
achieved within the forecast timeline. Public
Consultation needs to include a caveat that
the scheme may be subject to change based
on the delivery of public health objectives.
Proposed CAZ will exclude all community
based transport, implementation of travel
planning and ensuring convenient public
transport is available at suitable times.

6

Proposed CAZ will exclude all those who
have a Broxbourne business or residential
address.

Other relevant
groups

Transport dependent
business.

Fleet vehicles providers, taxi and
private hire companies, van companies
This will involve direct financial support in
with fleets that are owned by individual
terms of exemptions, discounts, sunset
rather than registered to the company,
periods, financial incentives to support
and SME HGV operations
transport dependent business and enhanced
infrastructure such as EV charging
infrastructure.

Opportunity to advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations

Agenda Pack Page 141

Conclusion of your analysis and assessment
OUTCOME AND NEXT STEPS
i.
-

SUMMARY

No equality impacts identified
No major change required to proposal

ii. Minimal equality impacts identified
- Adverse impacts have been identified, but have been objectively
justified (provided you do not unlawfully discriminate)
- Ensure decision makers consider the cumulative effect of how a
number of decisions impact on equality
- No major change required to proposal

7

iii. Potential equality impacts identified
- Take ‘mitigating action’ to change the original policy/proposal,
remove barriers or better advance equality
- Set out clear actions in the action plan in section 4.

The proposed package of mitigation measures (exemptions,
discounts, sunset periods, financial incentives to support business
and enhanced infrastructure to support transition to compliant
modes of transport) is intended to reduce the impacts of the CAZ on
these groups (age, disability, pregnancy and maternity,
Race, religion or belief, income deprived, those accessing
community and taxi based transport) that have been assessed as
being impacted upon.

Agenda Pack Page 142

iv. Major equality impacts identified
- The adverse effects are not justified, cannot be mitigated or show
unlawful discrimination
- You must stop and remove the policy
[you should consult with Legal Services]
- Ensure decision makers understand the equality impact

8

4.

Prioritised Action Plan

Impact identified and
group(s) affected

Action planned
Include actions relating to:

Expected outcome

Measure of success

Lead officer and
timeframe

• mitigation measures
• getting further research
• getting further data/consultation
NB: These actions must now be transferred to service or business plans and monitored/reviewed to ensure they achieve the outcomes identified.

Proposed CAZ will exclude all
community based transport.

Agenda Pack Page 143

Age

Disability

Proposed CAZ will exclude all
those who have a Broxbourne
business or residential address.

Vehicles which are registered
with the DVLA with a ‘disabled’ or
‘disabled passenger vehicle’ tax
class, will be exempt.
Vehicles used by Blue Badge
holders must meet the CAZ
emission standards.

Pregnancy and maternity

There are health inequalities
associated with pregnancy and
air quality.

The proposed package
of mitigation measures
(exemptions,
discounts, sunset
periods, financial
incentives to support
business and
enhanced
infrastructure to
support transition to
compliant modes of
transport) is intended
to reduce the impacts
of the CAZ on these
groups.

Trevor Brennan
Timeframe for CAZ
development and
delivery is from
March 2020, with
‘switch on’ before the
end of March 2022.

Owners/passengers
who use non-compliant
vehicles will transition
to compliant modes of
transport or vehicles.

Number of compliant
vehicles increases over
the period of time the
CAZ is in operation.

A decrease in NO2
concentrations to
some degree with the
CAZ.

Reduction in Nitrogen
Dioxide (NO2) levels to
meet EU Limit of 40
ug/m3 (Micrograms per
Cubic Meter of Air).

9

Trevor Brennan
Timeframe as above.

Trevor Brennan
Timeframe as above.

Race

Religion or belief

Agenda Pack Page 144

Income deprived
Those accessing
community and taxi based
transport

Taxis will be targeted in terms of
supporting mitigation measures
due to the combination of direct
and indirect impacts arising from
the proposed CAZ.
Measures to support those
wanting to attend places of
worship should be considered to
reduce the impact on these
groups.
Proposed CAZ will exclude all
those who have a Broxbourne
business or residential address.

Number of compliant
taxi vehicles increases
over the period of time
the CAZ is in operation.
No reduction in the
number of attendees to
place of worship due to
the CAZ.

Timeframe as above.

Trevor Brennan
Timeframe as above.
Trevor Brennan
Timeframe as above.
Trevor Brennan

Proposed CAZ will exclude all
those who have a Broxbourne
business or residential address.

Timeframe as above.

This EqIA has been signed off by:
Lead Equality Impact Assessment officer:
Head of Service or Business Manager: Sue Jackson
Review date:

Trevor Brennan

Date: 21 August 2019
Date: 30 August 2019

Please now send the completed EqIA to equalities@hertfordshire.gov.uk

10

APPENDIX 3

1995
1995
2018

1995 a

.
Citation,
1995

1.—
n 2018

2.

d

2018.

—
” means the

“
“

activities” means the act

.

3.
.

4

a

2018

.
1.

Agenda Pack Page 145

1

3

2

3

on

a

UK

31
.

2017,

5
a
nce with
Treasury’s Green Book
approach, to identify the

for which the authority
is responsible,
.
31

q

Agenda Pack Page
146
2

4

1995

.
.

Agenda
3 Pack Page 147

This page is intentionally left blank

